
Dated: November 4, 2022 * Denotes Information Not Enclosed  

AGENDA 

OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

PRINCETON SECONDARY SCHOOL 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2023, 4:30 P.M. 

 

Success for ALL Learners Today and Tomorrow on the Traditional Territories of the Nłeʔkepmux and Syilx 
 
 

1. Acknowledgement of the Traditional Territories and Metis Community 
 
 

2. Call To Order & Approval of the Agenda (Chairperson, Secretary Treasurer) 
 
 

3. Introduction of Student Trustees 
 
 

4. Minutes of the Open Meeting held October 11, 2023 
 
 

5. Business Arising from the Minutes 
 
 

6. EDUCATION 
 

a)          Truth and Reconciliation – Ministry of Education Update 
 

b) Roles of Schools and Educators in Supporting Resilience in Young Children         
after Disasters       

 
c)          Princeton Secondary School – Student Cell Phone Use 

 
d)          Inclusive Education Report 

 
e)          French Immersion Field Trip Proposal 

 
f)             French Immersion Program Update 

 
g)          Enrolment Update 

 
h) *         Superintendent’s Report 

 
7. OPERATIONS 

 
 



Dated: November 4, 2022 * Denotes Information Not Enclosed  

a) Nicola-Canford Perimeter Access 
 
b) Merritt Secondary School Cameras 

 
 
 

8. AUDIT AND FINANCE 
 

a) Quarterly Report 
 
 

9. POLICY 
 

a) Procedural Bylaw 
 Motion For Third Reading  

 
b) Use of School District Property Bylaw 

 Motion For Second Reading 
 

c) Freedom of Information Bylaw 
 Motion For Second Reading 

 
d) Indemnification Bylaw 

 Motion for Second Reading 
 

10. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 
11. TRUSTEE REPORTS 

 

a)  * Trustee Reports 
 

b)  * Student Trustee Reports 
 
c)  * Trustee Branch Meeting Report 

 
d)  * Other Reports 

 
 

12. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 
 

13. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

MINUTES 
 

 OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
MERRITT SCHOOL BOARD OFFICE 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2023, 6:00P.M. 
 

Success for ALL Learners Today and Tomorrow 
 
PRESENT: Chairperson G. Swan 
  
 Trustees J. Jepsen 
  J. Kent-Laidlaw 
  E. Hoisington  (ABSENT) 
  J. Chenoweth  
  L. Ward  
  D. Rainer  
   
 
 Superintendent S. McNiven 
 
 Assistant Superintendent J. Kempston  
 
 Secretary Treasurer D. Richardson  
 
 Assistant Secretary Treasurer L. Rusnjak 
  
 Executive Assistant J. McGifford  
                                                                                                           
  
 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THE TRADITIONAL TERRITORIES AND METIS 

COMMUNITY  
 
  
 AGENDA 
 
23/082 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 THAT the agenda be approved as presented. 
  

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

  
 
 
 



 2 

 
  
 MINUTES 
 
 
23/083 It was moved and seconded:  
 
 THAT the minutes of the Open Meeting held September 13, 2023, be adopted as 

amended.  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

None. 
 

 
EDUCATION 

 

South Central Interior Distance Education School Update: 

 
Dan Duncan, Principal of South Central Interior Distance Education School 
(SCIDES), introduced SCIDES teacher, Cory Hermiston.  Together they provided an 
update on the following items:  new initiatives, “The Rink” program, increased 
enrollment, SCIDES move to Coquihalla Middle School, and future plans. 
 
Truth and Reconciliation Update: 
 
Director of Indigenous Education, Shelley Oppenheim-Lacerte, presented Trustees 
with an Indigenous Education update that included an overview of the following 
items: Aboriginal Events & Activities for 2023/2024, engagement, Local Education 
Agreement Committee updates, student attendance and engagement, the hiring 
of an Indigenous Student Engagement Facilitator.   Ms. Oppenheim-Lacerte 
introduced First Nation Support Worker, Melissa Pinyon, who presented on the 
North American Indigenous Games and extra-curricular activities for Indigenous 
youth within the school district. 
 

 
 French Immersion Program Update: 
 

The Assistant Superintendent informed trustees about the progress being made 
with implementing the French Immersion Grant and the many French Immersion 
initiatives it will launch for the district. 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
Feeding Futures Memo: 
 
The Assistant Superintendent reported that the $350,000 Feeding Futures Grant has 
been disbursed for the 2023 – 2024 school year.  Some of the funds will be directed 
towards minor equipment upgrades and the hiring of a food program coordinator; 
however, as reported at the September open meeting, over $280,000.00 has been put 
directly into the hands of schools to ensure that every child has access to nutritional food 
on a daily basis. 

 
 

Trustee Branch Meeting Report: 

 
Trustees were provided an overview of the upcoming Thompson-Okanagan Branch 
Meeting being hosted on October 13th and 14th by the Nicola-Similkameen School 
District.  In advance of the event, the School District thanked Nicola Valley Institute of 
Technology, Nicola-Canford Elementary School and the Ministry of Education and Child 
Care for their support. In preparation for the upcoming branch meeting, Trustees 
discussed the importance of mental health supports. 

 
23/084 It was moved and seconded: 
 

THAT the Board sponsor and present the following motion for Youth Mental Health 
Support at the BCSTA Provincial Council meeting in October: 
 
That BCSTA request that Government supports the crea�on of a working group 
consis�ng of BCSTA, applicable Ministry’s, Right Holders, and Partner Groups to 
prepare a recommenda�on to the Ministry of Finance that will provide 
incen�ves for Youth Mental Health Workers to locate in Rural and Remote 
Communi�es to meet the needs of Children and Youth in said communi�es.  The 
work is desired to be completed prior to the tabling of the Provincial Budget in 
2024.  

 
 MOTION CARRIED 

 
Superintendent’s Report: 

 
The Superintendent circulated and spoke to his report, reflecting on the district 
events that have taken place over the past month. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 4 

 

OPERATIONS 

 

 Capital Projects Update: 
 
The Secretary Treasurer provided Trustees with an update on the district’s 
ongoing and upcoming capital projects aimed at enhancing our infrastructure 
and services.  With many projects being completed throughout the first quarter 
of the school year, the Secretary Treasurer expressed thanks and gratitude to 
Operation Manager, Darrell Finnigan, and his maintenance team for this work. 

 
 2023-2024 Amended Capital Plan: 

 
The Secretary Treasurer presented Trustees with the Ministry Response Letter, 
dated September 15, 2023, regarding the Amended Annual Five-Year Capital 
Plan Submission, Capital Bylaw No. 2023/24-CPSD58-03. The amendment to the 
capital plan includes the newly introduced Food Infrastructure Program 
introduced last year by the Ministry of Education and Childcare. 
 

 
23/085 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 
 THAT the Board approve the amended Capital By-Law No. 2023/24-CPSD58-03 for 

first reading. 
 MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

23/086 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 
 THAT the Board approve the amended Capital By-Law No. 2023/24-CPSD58-03 for 

second reading. 
 MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

23/087 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 
 THAT the Board approve the amended Capital By-Law No. 2023/24-CPSD58-03 to 

third and final reading. 
 MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
 



 5 

 
23/088 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 
 THAT the Board approve the amended Capital By-Law No. 2023/24-CPSD58-03 for 

third and final reading. 
 

 MOTION CARRIED 

 

Merritt Central School Bus Stop: 

 
The Secretary Treasurer provided the Board with an update on the reconfiguration 
changes being introduced to the road and sidewalk on Voght Street and how these 
changes will affect the school bus stop at Merritt Central School. 
 

Nicola-Canford Perimeter Access: 

 
The Secretary Treasurer reported that meaningful discussions took place with a 
unified stance towards safety for students and citizens of Lower Nicola as it 
pertains to safe travel to/from Nicola-Canford Elementary School. The school 
district and stakeholders continue to work towards a short-term and long-term 
solution to provide the community with safe access to Nicola-Canford 
Elementary School. 

 

AUDIT AND FINANCE 

 

2023-2024 Budget Timeline: 

 
The Secretary Treasurer provided Trustees with a timeline of key events that 
influence the budget process for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. 

 
Public Interest Disclosure Act: 
 

Barb McLean, Director of Human Resources, provided an overview of the Public 
Interest Disclosure Act highlighting the following key areas: the Purpose of the 
Public Interest Disclosure Act, The Definition of Serous Wrongdoing, 
Responsibilities of the District and Trustee Training Requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 6 

 
POLICY 

 
  Policy Committee Update: 

 
The Superintendent informed Trustees of the next Policy Committee meeting on 
October 24, 2023. 

 
   

Procedural Bylaw: 
 
23/089 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 THAT Bylaw No. 2-23, Procedural Bylaw, be moved for second reading. 
 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
Use of School District Property Bylaw: 

 
23/090 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 THAT the Board move Bylaw 6-23, Use of School District Property, be moved for first 

reading. 
 
 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

Freedom of Information Bylaw: 
 
23/091 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 THAT the Board move Bylaw 4-23, Freedom of Information Bylaw, forward for first 

reading. 
 
 

 MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 7 

Indemnification Bylaw: 
 
23/092 It was moved and seconded: 
 
 THAT the Board move Bylaw 3-23, Indemnification Bylaw, forward for first reading. 
 
 

 MOTION CARRIED 

 

TRUSTEE REPORTS 

 
Student Trustee Reports: 
 
Merritt Secondary School Vice-Principal, David Andersen, introduced Merritt   
Student Trustees Owen Bateson and Haidyn Clarke.  Together they provided 
Trustees with their perspective on what being an engaged/involved high school 
student looks like, as well as how grade 8’s and new students get introduced to  
 
(and engage with) school life at MSS.  When asked what they would like to see 
more of, they would like to see more ways to express their thoughts and 
opinions (via surveys/polls), collaboration and teamwork with staff, and learning 
engagement via field trips and activities. 

 

Trustee Reports: 
 

Trustee Chenoweth reported on Collettville Elementary and SCIDES. 

Trustee Rainer reported on John Allison Elementary.  

Trustee Hoisington reported on Nicola Canford Elementary. 

Trustee Ward reported on Vermilion Forks Elementary.  

Trustee Kent-Laidlaw reported on Princeton Secondary School. 

Trustee Jepsen reported on Diamond Vale Elementary and Merritt Central 
Elementary. 

Trustee Swan reported on Merritt Bench Elementary and Merritt Secondary 
School.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 8 

Selection of Board Committee & Representative Members: 
 
The Superintendent led discussion on the selection of board committee and 
representative members.  The following changes were made: 
 
BCPSEA Representative:   Trustee Jepsen 
BCPSEA Alternate:  Trustee Rainer 
BCSTA Representative:  Trustee Rainer 
BCSTA Alternate:   Trustee Kent-Laidlaw 
OLRC Representative:  Trustee Jepsen 
OLRC Alternate:   Secretary Treasurer, Dylan Richardson 

 
 CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 None. 
 
 
  
 PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 
 
 None. 
 
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The regular meeting adjourned at 8:05 pm. 
 
 
 ________________________ ___________________________ 
 Chairperson Secretary Treasurer 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

                            P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Stephen McNiven 
   Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: TRUTH AND RECONCILIATION DATE: November 8, 2023      
 MINISTRY OF EDUCATION UPDATE 
 
 
Senior staff will provide an overview of the updates to the School Act announced by the Ministry of Education on 
October 25th.  This announcement and the proposed amendments to the School Act are in response to the 
commitments in the Declaration Act Action Plan and the BC Tripartite Education Agreement (BCTEA).  The changes 
are intended to support better education outcomes for First Nation and other Indigenous students attending provincial 
public schools, and more effective relationships between Boards of Education and First Nations.  The proposed 
changes take a distinctions-based approach and were developed collaboratively with the First Nations Education 
Steering Committee and reflect consultation with First Nations and Indigenous people throughout B.C. 
 
The changes will require all Boards to establish an Indigenous Education Council (IEC) and a new school-of-choice 
provision that will enable First Nations to decide which school First Nations students who live on reserve, self-
governing or Treaty Lands will attend.   
 
 
 

 
 
SMcN/sc 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

                                   P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Stephen McNiven 
     Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: ARTICLE – ROLES OF SCHOOLS AND  DATE: November 8, 2023   
 EDUCATORS IN SUPPORTING RESILIENCE 
 IN YOUNG CHILDREN AFTER DISASTERS 
  
Presentation – Princeton Secondary School teacher Leanne Atkinson will provide a presentation outlining her 
recent article published in the Canadian Journal of Emergency Management.  The overview will highlight the 
important role that schools and educators play in supporting students and families after disasters. 
 
 

 

 
 
SMcN/sc 
 









































THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

                                   P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Stephen McNiven 
   Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: PRINCETON SECONDARY SCHOOL DATE: November 8, 2023   
 STUDENT CELL PHONE USE UPDATE 
  
 
Bill Lawrence, Principal of Princeton Secondary School (PSS) will provide a presentation on their new cell phone 
use procedures at PSS.  Areas of discussion will include: 
 

• Rationale 
• Communication 
• Procedures 
• Impact on Learning 
• Student, family, and staff feedback 

 
 

 

 
 
SMcN/sc 
 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161, Fax: (250) 378-6263 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Stephen McNiven 
   Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: INCLUSIVE EDUCATION REPORT DATE: November 8, 2023   
  
  
 
Misty Sheldon, Director of Instruction – Inclusive Education, will provide a report on Inclusive Education.  Topics will include: 
 

• Education Assistant recruitment 
• Competency Based Individual Education Plans 
• File Reviews 
• Mental Health Grant 
• Accessibility Committee 

 
 
 

 
 
SMcN/sc 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

                                   P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
  

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Jane Kempston 
   Assistant Superintendent 
  
RE: FRENCH IMMERSION FIELD DATE: November 3, 2023 
 TRIP PROPOSAL   
  
  
Collettville Elementary has put forward a proposal for a French Immersion Trip to Quebec City for Carnaval 
from February 8 to 12, 2024.  A total of 14 Collettville and Merritt Secondary students from grade 7 and grade 
10 will have the opportunity to travel to Quebec and enjoy the cultural experiences and adventures offered by 
this trip.  The trip is enthusiastically supported by the administration, staff, parents, and students, and we believe 
that this will be a successful experience for all involved. 
 
Merci!  
 
 

 
 
JK/sc 











THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

                                   P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
  

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Jane Kempston 
     Assistant Superintendent 
   
RE: FRENCH IMMERSION PROGRAM UPDATE DATE: November 3, 2023 
    
  
We are pleased to bring forward developments in the French Growth Grant Initiative in the areas of:  
 

1. Promotional Video Development 
2. French speaking Assistant hiring  
3. French Advisory Committee  
4. Implementation of a FIM Program review  
5. Fieldtrip Support 
6. Resource purchasing  
7. “French for a Day” pre-k events 
8. French Immersion teacher support  

 
  

 
 
JK/sc 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

                                   P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees FROM: Stephen McNiven 
   Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: ENROLMENT UPDATE DATE: November 4, 2023   
  
  
Senior Staff will provide Trustees with an update on final enrolment and an overview of class size averages across 
the district. 
 

 
 

 

 
 
SMcN/sc 
 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
  
                               P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Dylan Richardson 
     Secretary Treasurer/ CFO 
 
RE: NICOLA-CANFORD PERIMETER ACCESS  DATE: November 3 , 2023 
 
Since our las t update provided to Trustees  on October 11 th, the school dis trict has  continued to 
work with various  s takeholder groups within the community of Lower Nicola on short and long-
term solutions  for pedestrians  walking to and from Nicola-Canford Elementary School.   
 
We are pleased to announce that access  to Nicola-Canford Elementary School via the pathway on 
private property has  been reopened for s tudents  and citizens  of Lower Nicola—effective 
Thursday November 2, 2023. 
 
The school dis trict passes  along its  thanks and gratitude to all s takeholders  involved to make 
this  possible. With access  being reopened, work continues  to develop a long-term solutions . 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dylan Richardson 
Secretary Treasurer/ CFO 
 
 
DR/ jmg 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

                                      P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Stephen McNiven 
     Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: MERRITT SECONDARY SCHOOL CAMERA DATE: November 8, 2023 
 UPDATE 
 
Principal Adriane Mouland will provide an update on the installation of Cameras at Merritt Secondary School.  
The update will include the following: 
 

• Communication 
• Stakeholder Feedback 
• Process for Accessing Video Information 
• Impact of Cameras on Administrative Processes 
• Impact of Cameras on the School  

 
 

 
 
SMcN/sc 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
  
                               P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Dylan Richardson 
     Secretary Treasurer/ CFO 
 
RE: QUARTERLY UPDATE  DATE: November 3 , 2023 
 
 
Trustees  will be provided with a  quarterly update using the enclosed report, on the school 
dis trict’s  spending to budget for the firs t quarter of the school year, July 1  – September 30 , 
2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dylan Richardson 
Secretary Treasurer/ CFO 



Annual July - Sept Outstanding
Budget Expenses Remaining % Purch Orders

Salaries & Benefits
Salaries - Teachers 9,510,322$      994,023$         8,516,299$      10%
Salaries - Principals and VP 2,363,937        603,602           1,760,335        26% *
Salaries - Support Staff 3,265,963        633,993           2,631,970        19%
Salaries - Educational Assts 3,084,368        291,323           2,793,045        9%
Salaries - Other Professionals 1,280,395        305,695           974,700           24% *
Salaries - Repl TTOC 250,429           22,302             228,127           9%
Salaries - Repl CUPE 524,510           50,363             474,147           10%
Total Salaries: 20,279,924$    2,901,302$      17,378,622$    14%
200 Benefits 4,334,185        528,277           3,805,908        12%
Total Salaries & Benefits: 24,614,109$    3,429,579$      21,184,530$    14%

21.37% 18.21%
Services & Supplies
Professional Services 1,010,479$      550,548$         459,931$         54% ** 133,972$    
Student Transportation 160,000           11,660             148,340           7%
Professional Dev & Travel 290,000           54,848             235,152           19%
Rentals and Leases 45,390             11,683             33,707             26% *
Dues and Fees 99,488             59,878             39,610             60% **
Insurance 72,225             50,416             21,809             70% **
Supplies 1,365,311        454,186           911,125           33% 62,862$      
Utilities 696,000           106,683           589,317           15%
Total Services & Supplies: 3,738,893$      1,299,902$      2,438,991$      35%

Grand Total 28,353,002$    4,729,480$      23,623,522$    17%

The majority of school district expenses are incurreed during the School Year, September - June.
*    Expenses Are Represented By Three Months of Costs.
**  Expenses Are Represented By Front-End Loaded Expenses For The School Year.

Quarterly Budget Report - Operating Fund
For the Period Ended September 30, 2023

\\sd58-fserve\Administration\2023-2024 Agendas\03 November 2023\Open\8a1 Quarterly Update Data



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161, Fax: (250) 378-6263 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Stephen McNiven 
     Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: PROCEDURAL BYLAW  DATE: November 3, 2023 
 REVISION AND THIRD READING 
 
Enclosed, please find an updated copy of Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw.  The bylaw has been updated 
based on the feedback provided by the Nicola Valley Princeton District Teacher Union.  The updates are 
highlighted in the draft document included in the package and include the following: 
 

• 5.10.1  Minutes will not record the names of movers and seconders. 

• 5.10.2  Minutes will not record who voted for or against motions. Trustees may ask to have their vote 
recorded.  

• 7.7  A motion to reconsider a decision can be made the day on which the original motion was voted 
upon, by a member who voted on the prevailing side. It may be seconded by any member. It is debatable 
if the motion proposed to be reconsidered is debatable, and the debate can be on the merits of the 
original question. No question can be reconsidered twice.  

 
 
Trustees will be asked to complete the third reading of the Procedural Bylaw. 

 

 
 
SMcN/sc 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 1 of 11 

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.58  
(NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
BYLAW NO. 2-23 

PROCEDURAL BYLAW 
 

A Bylaw of the Board of Education of School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen), hereinafter 
called “the Board”, to establish procedures governing the conduct of meetings of the Board  
 
 
WHEREAS the School Act requires the Board to establish procedures to govern meetings of the 
Board. 
 
AND WHEREAS the Board wishes to enact meeting procedures to support meetings being 
conducted in a democratic, transparent and efficient manner. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Board of Education of School District No.58 (Nicola-Similkameen) in an 
open meeting, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. CITATION 
 

1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Procedural Bylaw 
xx. 

 
1.2 The rules contained in this Bylaw may be amended by bylaw only, at a meeting of which 

notice of intention to propose the amendment has been given at the previous meeting and 
in the notice of the meeting.  

 
1.3 A copy of the Board's procedural Bylaw shall be available for inspection at all  

reasonable times by any person. 
 
2. DEFINITIONS 

 
2.1 The terms used in this Bylaw have the meanings assigned by the School Act except as 

when the context indicates otherwise.  
 
3. OATH OF OFFICE, INAUGURAL MEETING AND ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS 
 
3.1 A person elected or appointed as a Trustee must take a prescribed oath of office, by oath 

or solemn affirmation, within the timelines outlined in the School Act, before assuming their 
role as a Trustee on the Board. 

 
3.2 After the general local election of Trustees, the Secretary Treasurer shall convene a first 

meeting of the Board as soon as possible and, in any event, within 30 days from the date 
that the new Board begins its term of office.  

 
3.3 The Secretary Treasurer will call the meeting to order and will preside until a Chair has been 

elected. 
 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 2 of 11 

 
 

3.4 The Secretary Treasurer shall announce the results of Trustee elections and confirm that 
all Trustees have taken the oath of office, or shall administer, or cause to be administered, 
the oath of office to Trustees who have not taken it.  

 
3.5 The Secretary Treasurer shall call for nominations three times for the position of Board 

Chair.  
3.5.1 Trustees may not nominate themselves. 
3.5.2 Nominations do not require a seconder. 
3.5.3 After each nomination, the Secretary Treasurer will request that each 

candidate accept or decline their nomination. 
3.5.4 Once nominations are closed, Trustees, who have accepted a nomination, 

may address their colleagues for two minutes. 
3.5.5 Trustees who are not elected for one office may accept a nomination for 

another office. 
 
3.6 The Secretary Treasurer will then conduct a vote, if necessary, by secret ballot. The 

Secretary Treasurer may designate one or more staff members as scrutineers to count the 
ballots. A person receiving a majority of the total votes cast will be elected Chair of the 
Board. 

3.6.1 If no person receives a clear majority, further ballots will be taken. 
3.6.2 If more than two candidates are on a ballot and no majority is reached, the 

person with the least number of votes will be dropped from the nominees and 
a further ballot conducted. 

3.6.3 If any vote involving only two Trustees ends in a tie vote, the election shall be 
decided by drawing of lots.  

3.6.4 All ballots will be destroyed. 
3.6.5 The Secretary Treasurer will declare the duly elected Chair of the Board and 

will vacate the Chair. 
 
3.7 The Chair so elected shall assume the Chair for the remainder of the meeting.  
 
3.8 Upon assuming the Chair, the Chair will call for nominations for Vice Chair of the Board, 

and then for the BCSTA Provincial Council and BCPSEA Representatives (and their 
alternates) for the ensuing year and will conduct each election in the same manner as 
described in 3.5 and 3.6 above. 

3.8.1 If possible, the Chair shall be from one electoral area and the Vice-Chair 
shall be from another electoral area.  

 
3.9 The Chair and Vice Chair serve in their roles at the pleasure of the Board or until the annual 

Special Meeting in the following November.  
3.9.1 A majority of the Board may elect a new Chair or Vice-Chair at any time.  

 
3.10 Following the elections, the order of business shall include:  

3.10.1 passage of banking resolutions and appointment of signing officers; and,  
3.10.2 appointment of time and place for meetings.  

 

4. ANNUAL SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD AND ELECTION OF BOARD OFFICERS 
 

4.1 In the years when no inaugural meeting is required, an annual Special Meeting of the Board 
will be held, in public, no later than the third Wednesday in November to appoint 
representatives to the BCSTA Provincial Council and BCPSEA Representatives (and their 
alternates) for the ensuing year in accordance with 3.8 above. 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 3 of 11 

 
 

5. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD – AGENDAS, QUORUM AND MINUTES 
5.1 Prior to each meeting, the Secretary Treasurer is responsible to prepare an agenda in 

consultation with the Chair and Superintendent outlining all business to be brought before 
the Board.  

 
5.2 Proposed agenda items may be requested to be on the agenda in one of the following ways: 

5.2.1 Individual Trustees wishing to have business brought before the Board will 
forward the business item to the Chair and Secretary Treasurer to facilitate 
appropriate action. 

5.2.2 As a request from a Committee of the Board. 
5.2.3 At the commencement of a meeting, in the event a Trustee believes that an 

item requires immediate attention, the Chair will allow the item to be added to 
the agenda provided that no objection is raised by any Trustee in 
attendance. If an objection is raised, the item will be added to a subsequent 
Board meeting.  

 
5.3 The Board agenda and supporting documentation will be provided to each Trustee in an 

electronic format, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
5.3.1 Every effort will be made to deliver the agenda and all supporting material to 

Trustees at least three working days prior to the time of Regular and Closed 
Meetings. 

5.3.2 Non receipt by a Trustee shall not void the proceedings. 
5.3.3 Written notice of any meeting will be waived provided that reasonable steps 

have been taken to notify all Trustees of the meeting and that the majority of 
the sitting Trustees agree to the waiving of the written notice. 

5.3.4 The agenda and supporting material for each Regular Meeting will be 
emailed to Rights-Holders and stakeholders 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

5.3.5 The agenda and supporting material for each Regular Meeting will be 
available for the public and interested media through the District website 
subsequent to delivery of the agenda to Trustees. 

5.3.6 Additional supporting information or related correspondence may be 
provided to the Board up to the start of the meeting if the information and 
correspondence is related to items on the published agenda. 

 
5.4 A quorum of the Board is a majority of the Trustees holding office at the time of the meeting. 

5.4.1 If, prior to any meeting, the Chair and/or the Secretary Treasurer have 
received information suggesting there will not be a quorum, the meeting may 
be rescheduled, and attempts will be made to contact all Trustees. 

5.4.2 At the appointed time for commencement of a meeting, the presiding officer 
shall ascertain that a quorum is present before proceeding to the business of 
the meeting. If a quorum has not been made within one-half hour after the 
appointed time, then the meeting will stand adjourned until the next meeting 
date or until another meeting has been called in accordance with this Bylaw. 

5.4.3 After a meeting has commenced, if notice is drawn to a lack of quorum, the 
presiding officer shall ascertain whether there is a lack of quorum and, if so 
found, adjourn the meeting to the next regular meeting date or to another 
meeting called in accordance with this Bylaw. 

 
5.5 In the event both the Chair and Vice Chair are absent, and a quorum is present, the 

Secretary Treasurer will call the Trustees to order and the Trustees will choose a Trustee 
to chair the meeting until the arrival of the Chair or Vice Chair. 

 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 4 of 11 

 
 

5.6 All meetings will begin with meaningful recognition of the ancestral, traditional and unceded 
territories of the Nłeʔkepmx and Syilx people and acknowledgement of the Metis 
communities. 
 

5.7 At all meetings, the Secretary Treasurer must be present at the time that a decision of the 
Board is rendered and must record any decision. If the Secretary Treasurer is unable to 
attend the meeting, or if the meeting concerns the work performance or employment of the 
Secretary Treasurer the Board may designate another employee of the Board to attend the 
meeting in place of the Secretary Treasurer to perform the duties of the Secretary Treasurer 
at the meeting. 

 
5.8 Any Trustee with a conflict of interest in a Meeting will:  

5.8.1 state that they have a conflict of interest in the matter;  
5.8.2 state the general nature of the conflict of interest;  
5.8.3 not take part in any discussion of the matter, if the meeting is not closed to 

the public, or leave any meeting closed to the public; 
5.8.4 not attempt in any way to influence the voting on any question in respect of 

the matter, before, during or after the meeting; and 
5.8.5 abstain from voting on any question in respect of the matter or the part of the 

meeting during which the matter is under consideration. 
 
5.9 The Chair or other Trustee presiding at a meeting may expel from the meeting a person, 

other than a Trustee, that the Chair or other Trustee presiding at the meeting considers 
guilty of improper conduct. A majority of the Trustees present at a meeting of the Board 
may expel a Trustee from the meeting for improper conduct. 

 
5.10 Minutes of the proceedings of all meetings shall be legibly recorded in a minute book, ratified 

at the next meeting of the Board, certified as correct by the Secretary Treasurer or other 
employee designated and the Chair or other Trustee presiding at the meeting. 

5.10.1 Minutes will not record the names of movers and seconders. 
5.10.2 Minutes will not record who voted for or against motions. Trustees may ask 

to have their vote recorded.  
5.10.3 If a Trustee declares a conflict of interest, such conflict will be recorded in the 

minutes.  
5.10.4 Except for minutes of a meeting or portion of a meeting from which persons 

other than Trustees or Board officers, or both, were excluded, the minutes 
will  be published on the District website once adopted. 

 
6. MEETING RULES OF ORDER  
 
6.1 Meetings of the Board will be conducted in accordance with this Bylaw and, where the Bylaw 

is silent, using Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, except where provisions of the 
School Act may conflict, in which case the latter will prevail.  

 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 5 of 11 

 
 

6.2 The Board may adopt a procedural rule for one or more meetings by resolution approved 
by two-thirds of the Trustees present at the meeting. A rule, other than the requirement for 
notice of meetings, may be suspended by unanimous consent of the Trustees present.  

 
6.3 The presiding officer's ruling on a point of order shall be based on rules of order as stated 

in paragraph 6.1. The ruling shall be subject to an appeal to the Board if requested by a 
Trustee immediately after the ruling and before resumption of business.  
 

6.4 An appeal of a ruling of the presiding officer shall be decided without debate by a majority 
vote of the Trustees present. A successful appeal does not necessarily set a precedent.  

 

7. MOTIONS  
 
7.1 A motion, when introduced, brings business before the meeting for possible action. A motion 

should be worded in a concise, unambiguous and complete form and, if lengthy or complex, 
should be submitted in writing.  

 
7.2 Subject to the concurrence of the seconder, the mover of a motion may withdraw the motion 

at any time prior to the vote being taken. A motion which has been withdrawn may be re-
introduced at the same meeting only by a different Trustee. 
 

7.3 The presiding officer may divide a motion containing more than one subject and it shall be 
voted on in the form in which it is divided.  

 
7.4 All motions shall be seconded.  
 
7.5 The Chair must vote as any other member.  
 
7.6 An amendment is a motion to modify the wording of a pending motion. An amendment must 

be germane, i.e., closely related to or having a bearing on the subject of the motion to be 
amended. A motion can be amended more than once, however, there can be only one 
amendment on the floor at a time and it shall be dealt with before another amendment is 
presented or the motion is decided. An amendment to an amendment must be germane to 
the first amendment and cannot be amended.  

 
7.7 A motion to reconsider a decision can be made the day on which the original motion was 

voted upon, by a member who voted on the prevailing side. It may be seconded by any 
member. It is debatable if the motion proposed to be reconsidered is debatable and the 
debate can be on the merits of the original question. No question can be reconsidered twice.  

 
7.8 Motions to rescind or to amend something previously adopted will be considered only if 

notice has been given at the previous meeting or in the call for the present meeting and if 
no action has been taken which it is too late to undo. Such motions are debatable and 
debate can go into the merits of the original question. There is no time limit for these motions 
and they can be moved by any member.  

 
7.9 Motions to rescind or to amend something previously adopted for which notice has been 

given require a majority vote to pass. However, if the original motion required a two-thirds 
vote or a vote of the majority of the Board, the same vote is required on a motion to amend 
or rescind.   

 
7.10 A motion that has been defeated at a previous meeting can be moved again at a subsequent 

meeting only if notice is given in the call of the meeting.  
 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 6 of 11 

 
 

8. DEBATE  
 
8.1 Debate shall be strictly relevant to the question before the meeting. The presiding officer 

shall warn speakers who violate this rule or who persist in tedious or repetitious debate.  
 

8.2 Speakers shall be recognized by the chair and shall address all remarks to the chair.  
 
8.3 The Chair may vacate the chair to enter debate or propose or second a motion in which 

case the Vice-Chair, if present, or another member appointed by the Chair shall preside.  
 
8.4 Each Trustee has the right to speak twice on the same question on the same day but cannot 

make a second speech so long as any Trustee who has not spoken on the question desires 
to speak. No Trustee shall speak for more than five minutes at one time.  

 
8.5 A matter of privilege (dealing with the rights or interests of the Board as a whole or of a 

Trustee personally) may be raised at any time and shall be dealt with forthwith before 
resumption of business.  
 

8.6 No Trustee shall interrupt another Trustee who has the floor except to raise a point of order, 
a point of privilege or to disclose a conflict of interest.  

 
9. VOTING  
 
9.1  It is expected that all Trustees present at a meeting will vote on each motion, unless a 

Trustee has a declared conflict of interest, in which case the Trustee must not vote and 
such an abstention shall be recorded.  

9.1.1 If a Trustee wishes to abstain for any other reason or to have a negative vote 
recorded he or she must so request before or immediately after the vote is 
taken.  

9.1.2 The Chair will vote at the same time as other Trustees. 
 

9.2 Voting shall be by show of hands and only the results recorded unless a member requests 
recording of names before the vote is taken. Where names are recorded both positive and 
negative votes shall be recorded.  

 
9.3 All questions shall be decided by a majority of the votes of the Trustees present and voting 

unless otherwise provided by the School Act.  
9.3.1 In the case of a tie vote, the motion is defeated. 

 
10. REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 
10.1 Meetings of the Board shall be open to the public unless, in the opinion of the Board, the 

public interest requires that persons other than Trustees be excluded. 
 
10.2 A Regular Meeting will normally be held monthly during the school year.  

 
10.3 Annually, the Board will determine the schedule of meetings for the following school year 

and will publish the schedule at the beginning of each school year in non-general election 
years, and within sixty (60) days following the election date in general election years. 

10.3.1 The meetings will alternate between Merritt and Princeton. 
 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 7 of 11 

 
 

10.4 Significant consideration will be given will be given to one of Regular Meeting per year 
taking place, on a rotating schedule, at a “Rights-Holder” location. 

 
10.5 A Regular Meeting shall stand adjourned at three hours after its commencement unless a 

consensus has been reached to extend the hour of adjournment.  
 
10.6 The order of business at Regular Meetings will be: 

10.6.1 Call to Order and meaningful acknowledgement of the ancestral, traditional 
and unceded territories of the Nłeʔkepmx and Syilx people and 
acknowledgement of the Metis communities. 

10.6.2 Approval of Agenda 
10.6.3 Adoption of Minutes of Prior Meetings 
10.6.4 Report from Closed Meeting  
10.6.5 Recognition, Presentations, and Delegations 
10.6.6 New Business 
10.6.7 Indigenous Education Report 
10.6.8 Superintendent Report  
10.6.9 Committee Reports 
10.6.10 Trustee Reports 
10.6.11 Public Question Period 
10.6.12 Adjournment 

 
10.7 A change to the order of business may be proposed by any Trustee and shall require 

unanimous consent. 
  

11. RECOGNITION, PRESENTATIONS AND DELEGATIONS AT REGULAR MEETINGS 
 

11.1 The Board welcomes and encourages presentations and delegations from students, 
parents, Rights-holders, staff, partners, and others at meetings. 

11.1.1 The Superintendent, or designate, will be responsible to schedule in-district 
presentations and recognition activities. 

11.1.2 Attempts should be made to keep such presentations to approximately 10 
minutes. 

 
11.2 A person or group wishing to address the Board as a delegation on an item not otherwise 

on the agenda will provide a written request outlining the item(s) they wish to present and 
naming a spokesperson. 

11.2.1 Consideration of the request is subject to article 5 of this Bylaw for placement 
on the agenda of a Regular or Closed Meeting. 

11.2.2 A request to present at a Regular Meeting will require a brief written 
submission, including the purpose (information, request for action, etc.) of 
the presentation seven days in advance of the scheduled Regular Meeting 
for distribution to Trustees as part of their agenda package. 

 
11.3 The Board will hear the delegation’s presentation and the Trustees may ask questions for 

clarification. The Board will ordinarily take the presentation under advisement and will take 
action after due deliberation, usually at a subsequent meeting. 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 8 of 11 

 
 

11.3.1 The Chair will rule on the propriety of all presentations and comments and 
may terminate any presentation or comment or refer it to a Closed Meeting of 
the Board if that is deemed to be appropriate by the Chair. 

11.3.2 A maximum of ten minutes will be allowed for each Delegation to make a 
presentation. 

 
11.4 If circumstances warrant, the Board may receive such individuals or Delegations in a Closed 

Meeting. 
 
12. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

 
12.1 The Regular Meeting is the formally designated means of transacting Board business. 

Communication with the public is extremely important and therefore, a public question 
period of fifteen minutes will be set aside at each Regular Meeting solely as a means for 
ensuring that public who are present in the audience have an opportunity to ask questions 
about business or issues pertaining to the Board agenda.  

12.1.1 Questions regarding personnel or specific students must be raised with the 
Superintendent privately. 

12.1.2 Matters currently under negotiation or litigation, or related to personnel or 
student circumstances, are not permitted and will not be addressed in the 
public question period.   

 
12.2 One question will be taken from each person, after which, time permitting, each person 

may present a second question.  
12.2.1 Speakers must identify themselves and their connection to the District before 

speaking.  
12.2.2 All questions will be limited to five minutes and directed to the Chair, who 

may refer the question to the Superintendent or Secretary Treasurer. 
12.2.3 The Chair may restrict the length of time any one individual may speak. 
12.2.4 The response to a question will be made during the meeting, when possible, 

or deferred until a later date when information becomes available. 
12.2.5 Individuals addressing the Board assume personal responsibility for all 

statements made to the Board. 
12.2.6 The Chair will use judgment to stop any inappropriate questions that would 

be better discussed in a different forum. 
12.2.7 The Chair may use discretion to terminate any speaker’s privilege or exclude 

a speaker from the meeting if, after due warning, the speaker persists with 
conduct or remarks which the Chair considers inappropriate. 

 
13. SPECIAL MEETINGS  
 
13.1 Special Meetings are any meetings held between the regularly scheduled meetings. 

 
13.2 A special meeting open to the public, or a Special Closed Meeting may be called by the s 

or, upon written request by a majority of the Trustees, shall be called by the Secretary 
Treasurer.  

 
13.3 No business other than that for which the meeting was called shall be conducted at the 

meeting.  
 

14. CLOSED MEETINGS  
 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 9 of 11 

 
 

14.1 All matters coming before the Board shall be considered in public unless the public interest 
requires otherwise. In these circumstances, persons other than Trustees may be excluded 
from a meeting or from part of a meeting. Accordingly, the following matters shall be 
considered in closed session unless the Board determines otherwise:  

14.1.1 Personnel matters including contract and collective agreement  negotiations; 
matters pertaining to individual employees including medical matters, 
appointment, promotion, demotion, transfer, conduct, competence, discipline, 
suspension, termination or retirement; grievances and requests of 
employees, Board officers or their bargaining agents or representatives; 
plans that relate to the management of personnel of or the administration of 
the Board and that have not yet been implemented or made public.  

14.1.2 Legal matters: accident claims and other matters where Board liabilities may 
arise; legal opinions and advice respecting the liability or interest of the 
Board or respecting any matter to be considered in closed session; 
information or action regarding legal actions brought by or against the Board.  

14.1.3 Matters pertaining to individual students including medical matters and the 
conduct, discipline, suspension or expulsion of students.  

14.1.4 Acquisition and disposition of real property prior to finalization including: 
future site planning and designation; negotiations regarding purchase, lease 
sale or exchange of real property; purchase of real property; consideration of 
appraisal reports and claims by owners; determination of Board offers; 
expropriation procedures.  

14.1.5 Matters pertaining to the safety, security or protection of Board property.  
14.1.6 Other matters where the Board decides that the public interest so requires.  

 
14.2 The Secretary Treasurer, or other employee designated in accordance with the School Act, 

must be present at the time that a decision of the Board is rendered and must record any 
decision.  

 
14.3 No Trustee shall disclose to the public the proceedings of a closed meeting unless a 

resolution has been passed at the closed meeting to allow such disclosure, except such as 
might be necessary to enforce the conflict of interest provisions of the School Act.  

 
14.4 The Secretary Treasurer shall prepare a record containing a general statement as to the 

nature of the matters discussed and the general nature of the decisions reached at a 
meeting from which persons other than Trustees or officers of the Board or both were 
excluded, and the record shall be provided in the subsequent Regular Meeting of the Board. 

 
15. BYLAWS  
 
15.1 The following matters shall be dealt with only by bylaw:  

15.1.1 adoption of the budget;  
15.1.2 a capital bylaw;  
15.1.3 the acquisition or disposal of property;  
15.1.4 rules and procedures relative to the organization of meetings of the Board;  
15.1.5 amendments to bylaws; and,  
15.1.6 where specifically required by the School Act.  

 



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 10 of 11 

 
 

15.2 Every bylaw shall be dealt with in the following stages:  
15.2.1 First reading: no debate or amendment;  
15.2.2 Second reading: discussion of the principle of the bylaw;  
15.2.3 Third reading: consideration of amendments made and final decision.  

  
15.3 When a bylaw has been amended it shall be reprinted as amended and shall not proceed 

until the amended version has been distributed. 
 

15.4  Subject to 14.3, at each of the three readings of a bylaw, the bylaw must be read in full, 
however, a reading of the bylaw may, if a written or printed copy of a bylaw is in the 
possession of each Trustee and is available to each member of the public in attendance at 
the meeting at which the bylaw is to be read, consist of a description of the bylaw by its title 
and a summary of its contents. 
 

15.5 The Board shall not give a bylaw more than two readings at any one meeting unless the 
members of the Board who are present at the meeting unanimously agree to give the bylaw 
all three readings at the meeting.  
 

15.6 The Secretary Treasurer shall certify on a copy of each bylaw, the readings and the times 
thereof and the text of any amendment passed in committee.  
 

15.7  A bylaw may be withdrawn at any stage with consent of the Board.  
   

16. ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION BY TRUSTEES  
 

16.1 In accordance with the School Act, Trustees may participate in or attend any meeting of the 
Board by telephone or other means of communication, provided that all Trustees and other 
persons participating in or attending the meeting are able to communicate with each other.  

16.2 If a Trustee participates in or attends a meeting of the Board by telephone or other means. 
  

17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
17.1 All points of procedure not provided for in this Bylaw shall be decided in accordance with 

Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised. 
 
17.2 If any part of this Bylaw is held to be invalid by the decision of a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Bylaw. 
 

18. REPEAL 
 
18.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) xxx Bylaw xxx dated December 2, 1996 and 

any previous xx Bylaws, including and amendments thereto, are hereby repealed.  
 
Read a First Time this xxth day of  xxx 2023 

Read a Second Time this xxth day of  xxx 2023 

Read a Third Time this   day of  2023 

ADOPTED this   day of  2023 
 
   



Bylaw No. 2-23 Procedural Bylaw  Page 11 of 11 

 
 

Chair 
 

 Secretary Treasurer 
 

 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161, Fax: (250) 378-6263 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Stephen McNiven 
     Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: BYAW 6-23 USE OF SCHOOL DISTRICT PROPERTY DATE: November 8, 2023 
 SECOND READING 
 
Enclosed please find an updated copy of draft Bylaw No. 6-23 Use of School District Property.  The bylaw has 
received first reading and no feedback was received so it is being brought forward for second reading.  Areas of 
focus include: 
 

• Definitions 
• Access to Property 
• Restrictions While On Board Property 
• Trespass 
• Responsibility of Registered Owner 
• Penalty 
• Authority to Make Regulations 

 
 

 
 
SMcN/sc 



BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.58 (NICOLA-
SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
BYLAW NO. 6-23 

 
 ACCESS TO SCHOOL DISTRICT PROPERTY  

 
A Bylaw of the Board of Education of School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen), hereinafter 
called “the Board”, to regulate and control the access to school district property. 
 
 
WHEREAS the School Act provides that the Board is responsible for the custody, maintenance 
and safekeeping of all property owned or leased by the Board. 
 
WHEREAS it is in the public interest to permit and encourage public use of school lands, 
buildings and facilities for other than strictly instructional activities when said lands, buildings 
and facilities are available;  
 
AND WHEREAS persons other than students, staff, parents, guardians and employees of the 
Board have occasion from time to time to make use of said lands, buildings and facilities; 
 
AND WHEREAS it has been felt necessary by the Board to define the permissible limits within 
which students, parents, guardians and employees of the Board and all other persons making 
use of said lands, buildings and facilities may operate; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Motor Vehicle Act provides guidance as to the operation of motor vehicles. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Board of Education of School District No.58 (Nicola-Similkameen) in an 
open meeting, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
1. CITATION 

 
1.1 This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Access to School 

District Property 6-23. 
 

2. DEFINITIONS 
 

The terms used in this Bylaw have the meanings assigned by the School Act and the Motor 
Vehicle Act, [RSBC 1996] CHAPTER 318, except as when the context indicates otherwise. 
 
3. ACCESS TO PROPERTY 
3.1  No person shall drive, operate or ride a vehicle as defined by the Motor Vehicle Act, and 

amendments thereto (hereinafter called "vehicle") on or over any land owned or 
administered by the Board (hereinafter called "said land") except:  

 
3.1.1 Deliveries – Persons proceeding to or from said land on a roadway provided 

for that purpose in the course of delivering or receiving chattels in connection 
with the operation of the of the said land or improvements thereon.; 



Bylaw No. 6-23 – Access to School District Property Page 2 of 3 

 
 

3.1.2 Board Employees – Persons proceeding to or from said land on a roadway 
provided for that purpose in connection with their duties therein, or on other 
bona fide business pertaining to the operation of the said land or 
improvements thereon;  

3.1.3 Students – Persons proceeding to or from a public school on a roadway 
provided for that purpose, and who are students registered within the school 
district; or 

3.1.4 Board Consent – Rightsholders, parents, guardians, partners or such other 
persons proceeding to or from a public school on a roadway provided for that 
purpose, who have received permission from the Board, either deemed or 
expressed. 

 

4. 2. RESTRICTIONS WHILE ON BOARD PROPERTY 
 
4.1 Speed Limit – No person shall operate any motorized vehicle on or over any land owned or 

administered by the Board at a rate of speed greater than eight (8) kilometres per hour.  
 

4.2 Parking – No person shall park, or otherwise leave unattended, a motor vehicle upon land 
owned or administered by the Board in any area other than those set aside for parking by 
the Board, unless written permission has been received.  

 
5. TRESPASS  
 
5.1 No person shall enter upon any properties owned or administered by the Board, other than 

bona fide students registered at a school, parents or guardians of such students and 
employees of the Board, or such other persons whom the Board has given prior permission 
to be on that property at that time.  

 
5.2 No person, having been requested by a school principal or other person in authority, shall 

refuse to leave any land owned or administered by the Board.  
 
5.3 No person shall cause, suffer or permit any domestic or range animal to enter upon land 

owned or administered by the Board without permission...  
 

6. RESPONSIBILITY OF REGISTERED OWNER  
 
6.1 The owner of a motor vehicle shall be held responsible for any violation of this Bylaw by a 

person entrusted by the owner with the possession of the said motor vehicle. The burden 
of proving that the person so in possession of the motor vehicle was not a person entrusted 
by the owner with the possession of said motor vehicle shall be the said owner.  

 

7. PENALTY  
7.1 Any person contravening any breach of or committing any offence against this Bylaw or any 

of the provisions of this Bylaw or who fails, refuses, omits or neglects to fulfil, observe, carry 
out or perform any duty, obligation, matter or thing whatsoever by this Bylaw prescribed or 
imposed or required to be done, is liable, to the provisions of the Offence Act, [RSBC 1996] 
and amendments thereto.  

  



Bylaw No. 6-23 – Access to School District Property Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 

8. AUTHORITY TO MAKE REGULATIONS  
The Secretary Treasurer may provide for the erection of traffic control devices to regulate, 
prohibit, control and direct vehicular and pedestrian traffic on land owned or administered by 
the Board, and the erection of any such traffic control device shall be deemed prime facie 
evidence that such device was erected at the direction and with the authority of the Board. 
 

9. REPEAL 
 
9.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Bylaw Limitations on the Use of School District 

Property 901.1 dated May 18, 2013 and any previous Limitations on the Use of School 
District Property Bylaws, including and amendments thereto, are hereby repealed.  

 
Read a First Time this xxth day of  xxx 2023 

Read a Second Time this xxth day of  xxx 2023 

Read a Third Time this   day of  2023 

ADOPTED this   day of  2023 
 
   

Chair 
 

 Secretary Treasurer 
 

 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161, Fax: (250) 378-6263 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Stephen McNiven 
     Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: BYAW 4-23 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION  DATE: November 8, 2023 
 SECOND READING 
 
Enclosed, please find an updated copy of draft Bylaw No. 4-23 Freedom of Information.  The bylaw has been 
updated based on the feedback provided by the Nicola Valley Princeton District Teacher Union.  The updates 
are highlighted in the draft document included in the package and include the following: 
 
"AND WHEREAS Section 77 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (“Act”) gives the 
School District the authority to set any fees the School District requires to be paid under section 75 of the Act." 
 
Trustees will be asked to complete the second reading of the Procedural Bylaw. 
 
 

 

 
 
SMcN/sc 



 

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.58  
(NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
BYLAW NO. 4-23 

 
 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF 

PRIVACY BYLAW 
 

 
 
A Bylaw of the Board of Education of School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen), hereinafter 
called “the Board”, to implement the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 
 
 
WHEREAS the Board must designate a person or group of persons as the head of the public 
body for the purposes of the Act.  
 
AND WHEREAS Section 77 of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (“Act”) 
gives the School District the authority to set any fees the School District requires to be paid under 
section 75 of the Act.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Board of Education of School District No.58 (Nicola-Similkameen) in an 
open meeting, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. CITATION 
 

1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Freedom of 
Information and Protection of Privacy Bylaw 4-23. 

 
2. DEFINITIONS 

 
2.1 The terms used in this Bylaw have the meanings assigned by the Freedom of Information 

and Protection of Privacy Act except as when the context indicates otherwise.  
 

3. DESIGNATION OF HEAD 
 
3.1 The Board of Education designates the Secretary Treasurer as the head of the School 

District for the purposes of the Act and authorizes the Secretary Treasurer to be responsible 
for the administration of the Act. 

 
4. AUTHORIZATION TO ACT 

 
4.1 The Secretary Treasurer is authorized to issue any procedures required to support the 

district’s administration of the Act. 
 



 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
5.1 If any part of this Bylaw is held to be invalid by the decision of a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Bylaw. 
 
6. REPEAL 
 
6.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Freedom of Information and Protection of 

Privacy Fees Bylaw 3-98 dated April 8, 1998 is hereby repealed.  
 
Read a First Time this xxth day of  xxx 2023 

Read a Second Time this xxth day of  xxx 2023 

Read a Third Time this   day of  2023 

ADOPTED this   day of  2023 
 
   

Chair 
 

 Secretary Treasurer 
 

 



THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF 
SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 58 (NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 

 
 

P.O. Box 4100, 1550 Chapman Street, Merritt, B.C., V1K 1B8, Phone: (250) 378-5161, Fax: (250) 378-6263 
 

Success for ALL Learners ~ Today and Tomorrow 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: All Trustees  FROM: Stephen McNiven 
     Superintendent of Schools 
  
RE: BYAW 3-23 INDEMNIFICATION  DATE: November 8, 2023 
 SECOND READING 
 
Enclosed please find an updated copy of draft Bylaw No. 3-23 Indemnification.  The bylaw has received its first 
reading, and no feedback was received, so it is being brought forward for a second reading.  Areas of focus 
include: 
 
 

• Definitions 
• Indemnification 
• Contracts 
• Exclusions 
• Legal Counsel 
• Amounts Payable 
• Advancing Legal Costs 
• Miscellaneous Provisions 

 
 

 
 
SMcN/sc 



 

BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO.58  
(NICOLA-SIMILKAMEEN) 

 
BYLAW NO. 3-23 

 
INDEMNIFICATION BYLAW 

 
 
A Bylaw of the Board of Education of School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen), hereinafter 
referred to as the "Board", to establish Board indemnification for trustees, officers and employees. 
 
 
WHEREAS section 95 of the School Act provides that the Board may enact a Bylaw to 
indemnify a trustee, officer, or an employee of the Board.  
 
AND WHEREAS the Board wishes to enact indemnification provisions. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Board in an open meeting, hereby ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. CITATION 
 

1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as ‘School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Indemnification 
Bylaw 3-23. 

 
2. DEFINITIONS 

 
2.1 The terms used in this Bylaw have the meanings assigned by the School Act except when 

context indicates otherwise. 
  

2.2 Within this this Bylaw: 
 

2.2.1 "trustee" means an elected member of the Board; 
2.2.2 "officer" means a Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, Secretary-

Treasurer, or Assistant Secretary Treasurer of the Board; 
2.2.3 "employee" means Director, district and school based administrators and all 

excluded staff, teachers and non-teaching personnel other than officers; 
2.2.4 reference to a trustee, officer or employee includes a former trustee, officer 

or employee; 
2.2.5 “court” means a court of law and includes a tribunal, an arbitrator and any other 

person who is acting in a judicial or quasi-judicial capacity.  
 
3. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
3.1 Subject to the exclusions below, the Board will, in accordance with the provisions of this 

Bylaw, indemnify a trustee, officer or employee:  
 



Bylaw No. 3-23 Indemnification Bylaw  Page 2 of 4 

 
 

3.1.1 against a claim for damages against arising out of the performance of their 
duties, or 

3.1.2 if an inquiry under the Public Inquiry Act or other proceeding that involves the 
administration and conduct of the business of the School District. 

 
3.2 The Board may pay legal costs incurred in proceedings arising out of the claim, inquiry or 

other proceeding which involves the administration and conduct of the business of the 
School District. 

 
3.3 The Board shall not seek indemnity from a trustee, officer or employee in respect of any 

action of the trustee, officer or employee that results in a claim for damages against the 
Board, except : 

3.3.1 where the claim for damages arises out of the gross negligence of the 
trustee, officer or employee; or  

3.3.2 where the officer or employee willfully acted contrary to the terms of their 
employment or, an order of a superior. 

4. CONTRACTS   
 

4.1 This Bylaw shall be read into all officer and employee employment contracts that are in 
force, or may be in force in the future, including collective agreements. 

 
5. EXCLUSIONS:  
 
5.1 The Board shall not indemnify a trustee, officer or employee against: 

5.1.1 any matters for which insurance coverage is available to cover the liability of 
the trustee, officer or employee; 

5.1.2 a fine or penalty imposed as a result of their criminal conviction, conditional 
discharge or absolute discharge; 

5.1.3 an action or proceeding by the Board against the trustee, officer or 
employee; or an action or proceeding by the trustee, officer or employee 
against the Board; or where the interests of the Board are, or may become, 
adverse to the interests of the trustee, officer or employee    

5.1.4 criminal prosecution that arises out of the performance of their duties, unless 
the Board agrees to do so by an affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of 
all its members  

5.1.5 proceedings under the Teachers Act, unless the Board agrees to do so by an 
affirmative majority vote 

5.1.6 allegations of harassment, unless the Board agrees to the contrary, by an 
affirmative vote of a majority of its members 

5.1.7 a claim brought by a third party for liability arising out of the operation of a 
vehicle owned by or leased to the School District 

5.1.8 actions or claims regarding bodily injury caused intentionally, except when 
done to protect persons or property 

5.1.9 a restitution ordered pursuant to the School Act 
5.1.10 personal injury actions or claims arising out of the performance or alleged 

performance of a criminal or illegal act, unless they were not aware of, or 
party to, the performance of any such act 

5.1.11 legal cost or liability, where a Court determines that they knowingly 
contravened the School Act or other legislation; or knowingly permitted 
and/or authorized an expenditure which is not authorized by an enactment 

5.1.12 legal cost or liability where, in the opinion of the Board, they did not have 



Bylaw No. 3-23 Indemnification Bylaw  Page 3 of 4 

 
 

reasonable grounds to believe that their conduct was lawful 
 

6. LEGAL COUNSEL   
 
6.1 For those matters provided for in Section 3 of this Bylaw, and not excluded by Section 5, 

the trustee, officer or employee may: 
6.1.1 retain legal counsel appointed by the Board, and the Board shall provide 

instructions and pay the appointed legal counsel directly, or 
6.1.2 retain legal counsel of their choice, and the Board shall have the right to: 

6.1.2.1 approve in advance, any agreement for legal fees and 
disbursements; 

6.1.2.2 pay all or part of the legal fees and disbursements, and set a 
maximum amount for legal fees and disbursements; 

6.1.2.3 direct the defense, and to settle or compromise the claim, action, 
or proceeding. The trustee, officer or employee agrees to include 
such a term in the agreement with their legal counsel; 

6.1.2.4 determine whether all, or any part, of the legal costs paid prior to 
the approval of the Board shall be reimbursed. 

 
7. AMOUNTS PAYABLE 

  
7.1 Any amount that may be payable by the Board shall be reduced by any court costs awarded 

to the trustee, officer or employee. 
 

8. ADVANCING LEGAL COSTS 
 
8.1 The Board may advance legal costs to the trustee, officer or employee prior to the final 

resolution of a claim, action or proceeding.  
 
8.2 When the Board advances legal costs to a trustee, officer, or employee, they shall provide 

written authorization for the Board to deduct an amount equivalent to the costs advanced 
from future funds payable to them by the Board, to be used if it is later determined that the 
trustee, officer or employee is not entitled to be indemnified pursuant to the terms of this 
Bylaw. 

 

9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
9.1 If any part of this Bylaw is held to be invalid by the decision of a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Bylaw. 
 
  



Bylaw No. 3-23 Indemnification Bylaw  Page 4 of 4 

 
 

10. REPEAL 
 
10.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Indemnification Bylaw 2-96 dated December 

2, 1996 and any previous Indemnification Bylaws, including and amendments thereto, are 
hereby repealed.  

 
Read a First Time 
 
 
 

this xxth day of  xxx 2023 

Read a Second Time this xxth day of  xxx 2023 

Read a Third Time this   day of  2023 

ADOPTED this   day of  2023 
 
   

Chair 
 

 Secretary Treasurer 
 

 


	_Open Agenda November 8 2023
	6. EDUCATION
	7. OPERATIONS
	8. AUDIT AND FINANCE
	9. POLICY
	10. CORRESPONDENCE
	11. TRUSTEE REPORTS
	12. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD

	4 Open Minutes October 11 2023
	MOTION CARRIED
	POLICY

	6a - Truth and Reconciliation Memo
	6b - Roles of Schools and Educators in Supporting Resilience in Young Children after Disasters
	6b 1 - Roles of Schools and Educators in Supporting - L. Atkinson
	6c - Princeton Secondary School Student Cell Phone Use
	6d - Inclusive Education Report
	6E - French Immersion Field Trip
	6e 2- CV FIM Field Trip Info
	6f - French Immersion Program Update
	6g - Enrolment Update
	7a Nicola Canford Perimeter Access Memo
	7b - MSS School Cameras Update
	8a Quarterly Update Memo
	8a1 Quarterly Update Data
	Sept 2023

	9a - Procedural Bylaw Third Reading
	 5.10.1  Minutes will not record the names of movers and seconders.
	 5.10.2  Minutes will not record who voted for or against motions. Trustees may ask to have their vote recorded.
	 7.7  A motion to reconsider a decision can be made the day on which the original motion was voted upon, by a member who voted on the prevailing side. It may be seconded by any member. It is debatable if the motion proposed to be reconsidered is deba...

	9a 1 - SD58 Procedural  Bylaw Draft November 2 2023
	1. CITATION
	1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Procedural Bylaw xx.
	1.2 The rules contained in this Bylaw may be amended by bylaw only, at a meeting of which notice of intention to propose the amendment has been given at the previous meeting and in the notice of the meeting.
	1.3 A copy of the Board's procedural Bylaw shall be available for inspection at all
	reasonable times by any person.

	2. DEFINITIONS
	2.1 The terms used in this Bylaw have the meanings assigned by the School Act except as when the context indicates otherwise.

	3. Oath of Office, Inaugural Meeting and Election of Board Officers
	3.1 A person elected or appointed as a Trustee must take a prescribed oath of office, by oath or solemn affirmation, within the timelines outlined in the School Act, before assuming their role as a Trustee on the Board.
	3.2 After the general local election of Trustees, the Secretary Treasurer shall convene a first meeting of the Board as soon as possible and, in any event, within 30 days from the date that the new Board begins its term of office.
	3.3 The Secretary Treasurer will call the meeting to order and will preside until a Chair has been elected.
	3.4 The Secretary Treasurer shall announce the results of Trustee elections and confirm that all Trustees have taken the oath of office, or shall administer, or cause to be administered, the oath of office to Trustees who have not taken it.
	3.5 The Secretary Treasurer shall call for nominations three times for the position of Board Chair.
	3.5.1 Trustees may not nominate themselves.
	3.5.2 Nominations do not require a seconder.
	3.5.3 After each nomination, the Secretary Treasurer will request that each candidate accept or decline their nomination.
	3.5.4 Once nominations are closed, Trustees, who have accepted a nomination, may address their colleagues for two minutes.
	3.5.5 Trustees who are not elected for one office may accept a nomination for another office.

	3.6 The Secretary Treasurer will then conduct a vote, if necessary, by secret ballot. The Secretary Treasurer may designate one or more staff members as scrutineers to count the ballots. A person receiving a majority of the total votes cast will be el...
	3.6.1 If no person receives a clear majority, further ballots will be taken.
	3.6.2 If more than two candidates are on a ballot and no majority is reached, the person with the least number of votes will be dropped from the nominees and a further ballot conducted.
	3.6.3 If any vote involving only two Trustees ends in a tie vote, the election shall be decided by drawing of lots.
	3.6.4 All ballots will be destroyed.
	3.6.5 The Secretary Treasurer will declare the duly elected Chair of the Board and will vacate the Chair.

	3.7 The Chair so elected shall assume the Chair for the remainder of the meeting.
	3.8 Upon assuming the Chair, the Chair will call for nominations for Vice Chair of the Board, and then for the BCSTA Provincial Council and BCPSEA Representatives (and their alternates) for the ensuing year and will conduct each election in the same m...
	3.8.1 If possible, the Chair shall be from one electoral area and the Vice-Chair shall be from another electoral area.

	3.9 The Chair and Vice Chair serve in their roles at the pleasure of the Board or until the annual Special Meeting in the following November.
	3.9.1 A majority of the Board may elect a new Chair or Vice-Chair at any time.

	3.10 Following the elections, the order of business shall include:
	3.10.1 passage of banking resolutions and appointment of signing officers; and,
	3.10.2 appointment of time and place for meetings.


	4. Annual Special Meeting of the Board and Election of Board Officers
	4.1 In the years when no inaugural meeting is required, an annual Special Meeting of the Board will be held, in public, no later than the third Wednesday in November to appoint representatives to the BCSTA Provincial Council and BCPSEA Representatives...

	5. Meetings of the Board – Agendas, quorum and minutes
	5.1 Prior to each meeting, the Secretary Treasurer is responsible to prepare an agenda in consultation with the Chair and Superintendent outlining all business to be brought before the Board.
	5.2 Proposed agenda items may be requested to be on the agenda in one of the following ways:
	5.2.1 Individual Trustees wishing to have business brought before the Board will forward the business item to the Chair and Secretary Treasurer to facilitate appropriate action.
	5.2.2 As a request from a Committee of the Board.
	5.2.3 At the commencement of a meeting, in the event a Trustee believes that an item requires immediate attention, the Chair will allow the item to be added to the agenda provided that no objection is raised by any Trustee in attendance. If an objecti...

	5.3 The Board agenda and supporting documentation will be provided to each Trustee in an electronic format, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.
	5.3.1 Every effort will be made to deliver the agenda and all supporting material to Trustees at least three working days prior to the time of Regular and Closed Meetings.
	5.3.2 Non receipt by a Trustee shall not void the proceedings.
	5.3.3 Written notice of any meeting will be waived provided that reasonable steps have been taken to notify all Trustees of the meeting and that the majority of the sitting Trustees agree to the waiving of the written notice.
	5.3.4 The agenda and supporting material for each Regular Meeting will be emailed to Rights-Holders and stakeholders 48 hours in advance of the meeting.
	5.3.5 The agenda and supporting material for each Regular Meeting will be available for the public and interested media through the District website subsequent to delivery of the agenda to Trustees.
	5.3.6 Additional supporting information or related correspondence may be provided to the Board up to the start of the meeting if the information and correspondence is related to items on the published agenda.

	5.4 A quorum of the Board is a majority of the Trustees holding office at the time of the meeting.
	5.4.1 If, prior to any meeting, the Chair and/or the Secretary Treasurer have received information suggesting there will not be a quorum, the meeting may be rescheduled, and attempts will be made to contact all Trustees.
	5.4.2 At the appointed time for commencement of a meeting, the presiding officer shall ascertain that a quorum is present before proceeding to the business of the meeting. If a quorum has not been made within one-half hour after the appointed time, th...
	5.4.3 After a meeting has commenced, if notice is drawn to a lack of quorum, the presiding officer shall ascertain whether there is a lack of quorum and, if so found, adjourn the meeting to the next regular meeting date or to another meeting called in...

	5.5 In the event both the Chair and Vice Chair are absent, and a quorum is present, the Secretary Treasurer will call the Trustees to order and the Trustees will choose a Trustee to chair the meeting until the arrival of the Chair or Vice Chair.
	5.6 All meetings will begin with meaningful recognition of the ancestral, traditional and unceded territories of the Nłeʔkepmx and Syilx people and acknowledgement of the Metis communities.
	5.7 At all meetings, the Secretary Treasurer must be present at the time that a decision of the Board is rendered and must record any decision. If the Secretary Treasurer is unable to attend the meeting, or if the meeting concerns the work performance...
	5.8 Any Trustee with a conflict of interest in a Meeting will:
	5.8.1 state that they have a conflict of interest in the matter;
	5.8.2 state the general nature of the conflict of interest;
	5.8.3 not take part in any discussion of the matter, if the meeting is not closed to the public, or leave any meeting closed to the public;
	5.8.4 not attempt in any way to influence the voting on any question in respect of the matter, before, during or after the meeting; and
	5.8.5 abstain from voting on any question in respect of the matter or the part of the meeting during which the matter is under consideration.

	5.9 The Chair or other Trustee presiding at a meeting may expel from the meeting a person, other than a Trustee, that the Chair or other Trustee presiding at the meeting considers guilty of improper conduct. A majority of the Trustees present at a mee...
	5.10 Minutes of the proceedings of all meetings shall be legibly recorded in a minute book, ratified at the next meeting of the Board, certified as correct by the Secretary Treasurer or other employee designated and the Chair or other Trustee presidin...
	5.10.1 Minutes will not record the names of movers and seconders.
	5.10.2 Minutes will not record who voted for or against motions. Trustees may ask to have their vote recorded.
	5.10.3 If a Trustee declares a conflict of interest, such conflict will be recorded in the minutes.
	5.10.4 Except for minutes of a meeting or portion of a meeting from which persons other than Trustees or Board officers, or both, were excluded, the minutes will  be published on the District website once adopted.


	6. MEETING RULES OF ORDER
	6.1 Meetings of the Board will be conducted in accordance with this Bylaw and, where the Bylaw is silent, using Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, except where provisions of the School Act may conflict, in which case the latter will prevail.
	6.2 The Board may adopt a procedural rule for one or more meetings by resolution approved by two-thirds of the Trustees present at the meeting. A rule, other than the requirement for notice of meetings, may be suspended by unanimous consent of the Tru...
	6.3 The presiding officer's ruling on a point of order shall be based on rules of order as stated in paragraph 6.1. The ruling shall be subject to an appeal to the Board if requested by a Trustee immediately after the ruling and before resumption of b...
	6.4 An appeal of a ruling of the presiding officer shall be decided without debate by a majority vote of the Trustees present. A successful appeal does not necessarily set a precedent.

	7. Motions
	7.1 A motion, when introduced, brings business before the meeting for possible action. A motion should be worded in a concise, unambiguous and complete form and, if lengthy or complex, should be submitted in writing.
	7.2 Subject to the concurrence of the seconder, the mover of a motion may withdraw the motion at any time prior to the vote being taken. A motion which has been withdrawn may be re-introduced at the same meeting only by a different Trustee.
	7.3 The presiding officer may divide a motion containing more than one subject and it shall be voted on in the form in which it is divided.
	7.4 All motions shall be seconded.
	7.5 The Chair must vote as any other member.
	7.6 An amendment is a motion to modify the wording of a pending motion. An amendment must be germane, i.e., closely related to or having a bearing on the subject of the motion to be amended. A motion can be amended more than once, however, there can b...
	7.7 A motion to reconsider a decision can be made the day on which the original motion was voted upon, by a member who voted on the prevailing side. It may be seconded by any member. It is debatable if the motion proposed to be reconsidered is debatab...
	7.8 Motions to rescind or to amend something previously adopted will be considered only if notice has been given at the previous meeting or in the call for the present meeting and if no action has been taken which it is too late to undo. Such motions ...
	7.9 Motions to rescind or to amend something previously adopted for which notice has been given require a majority vote to pass. However, if the original motion required a two-thirds vote or a vote of the majority of the Board, the same vote is requir...
	7.10 A motion that has been defeated at a previous meeting can be moved again at a subsequent meeting only if notice is given in the call of the meeting.

	8. Debate
	8.1 Debate shall be strictly relevant to the question before the meeting. The presiding officer shall warn speakers who violate this rule or who persist in tedious or repetitious debate.
	8.2 Speakers shall be recognized by the chair and shall address all remarks to the chair.
	8.3 The Chair may vacate the chair to enter debate or propose or second a motion in which case the Vice-Chair, if present, or another member appointed by the Chair shall preside.
	8.4 Each Trustee has the right to speak twice on the same question on the same day but cannot make a second speech so long as any Trustee who has not spoken on the question desires to speak. No Trustee shall speak for more than five minutes at one time.
	8.5 A matter of privilege (dealing with the rights or interests of the Board as a whole or of a Trustee personally) may be raised at any time and shall be dealt with forthwith before resumption of business.
	8.6 No Trustee shall interrupt another Trustee who has the floor except to raise a point of order, a point of privilege or to disclose a conflict of interest.

	9. Voting
	9.1  It is expected that all Trustees present at a meeting will vote on each motion, unless a Trustee has a declared conflict of interest, in which case the Trustee must not vote and such an abstention shall be recorded.
	9.1.1 If a Trustee wishes to abstain for any other reason or to have a negative vote recorded he or she must so request before or immediately after the vote is taken.
	9.1.2 The Chair will vote at the same time as other Trustees.

	9.2 Voting shall be by show of hands and only the results recorded unless a member requests recording of names before the vote is taken. Where names are recorded both positive and negative votes shall be recorded.
	9.3 All questions shall be decided by a majority of the votes of the Trustees present and voting unless otherwise provided by the School Act.
	9.3.1 In the case of a tie vote, the motion is defeated.


	10. Regular Meetings OF THE BOARD
	10.1 Meetings of the Board shall be open to the public unless, in the opinion of the Board, the public interest requires that persons other than Trustees be excluded.
	10.2 A Regular Meeting will normally be held monthly during the school year.
	10.3 Annually, the Board will determine the schedule of meetings for the following school year and will publish the schedule at the beginning of each school year in non-general election years, and within sixty (60) days following the election date in ...
	10.3.1 The meetings will alternate between Merritt and Princeton.

	10.4 Significant consideration will be given will be given to one of Regular Meeting per year taking place, on a rotating schedule, at a “Rights-Holder” location.
	10.5 A Regular Meeting shall stand adjourned at three hours after its commencement unless a consensus has been reached to extend the hour of adjournment.
	10.6 The order of business at Regular Meetings will be:
	10.6.1 Call to Order and meaningful acknowledgement of the ancestral, traditional and unceded territories of the Nłeʔkepmx and Syilx people and acknowledgement of the Metis communities.
	10.6.2 Approval of Agenda
	10.6.3 Adoption of Minutes of Prior Meetings
	10.6.4 Report from Closed Meeting
	10.6.5 Recognition, Presentations, and Delegations
	10.6.6 New Business
	10.6.7 Indigenous Education Report
	10.6.8 Superintendent Report
	10.6.9 Committee Reports
	10.6.10 Trustee Reports
	10.6.11 Public Question Period
	10.6.12 Adjournment

	10.7 A change to the order of business may be proposed by any Trustee and shall require unanimous consent.

	11. Recognition, Presentations and Delegations AT Regular Meetings
	11.1 The Board welcomes and encourages presentations and delegations from students, parents, Rights-holders, staff, partners, and others at meetings.
	11.1.1 The Superintendent, or designate, will be responsible to schedule in-district presentations and recognition activities.
	11.1.2 Attempts should be made to keep such presentations to approximately 10 minutes.

	11.2 A person or group wishing to address the Board as a delegation on an item not otherwise on the agenda will provide a written request outlining the item(s) they wish to present and naming a spokesperson.
	11.2.1 Consideration of the request is subject to article 5 of this Bylaw for placement on the agenda of a Regular or Closed Meeting.
	11.2.2 A request to present at a Regular Meeting will require a brief written submission, including the purpose (information, request for action, etc.) of the presentation seven days in advance of the scheduled Regular Meeting for distribution to Trus...

	11.3 The Board will hear the delegation’s presentation and the Trustees may ask questions for clarification. The Board will ordinarily take the presentation under advisement and will take action after due deliberation, usually at a subsequent meeting.
	11.3.1 The Chair will rule on the propriety of all presentations and comments and may terminate any presentation or comment or refer it to a Closed Meeting of the Board if that is deemed to be appropriate by the Chair.
	11.3.2 A maximum of ten minutes will be allowed for each Delegation to make a presentation.

	11.4 If circumstances warrant, the Board may receive such individuals or Delegations in a Closed Meeting.
	12.1.1 Questions regarding personnel or specific students must be raised with the Superintendent privately.
	12.1.2 Matters currently under negotiation or litigation, or related to personnel or student circumstances, are not permitted and will not be addressed in the public question period.
	12.2.1 Speakers must identify themselves and their connection to the District before speaking.
	12.2.2 All questions will be limited to five minutes and directed to the Chair, who may refer the question to the Superintendent or Secretary Treasurer.
	12.2.3 The Chair may restrict the length of time any one individual may speak.
	12.2.4 The response to a question will be made during the meeting, when possible, or deferred until a later date when information becomes available.
	12.2.5 Individuals addressing the Board assume personal responsibility for all statements made to the Board.
	12.2.6 The Chair will use judgment to stop any inappropriate questions that would be better discussed in a different forum.
	12.2.7 The Chair may use discretion to terminate any speaker’s privilege or exclude a speaker from the meeting if, after due warning, the speaker persists with conduct or remarks which the Chair considers inappropriate.


	13. Special Meetings
	13.1 Special Meetings are any meetings held between the regularly scheduled meetings.
	13.2 A special meeting open to the public, or a Special Closed Meeting may be called by the s or, upon written request by a majority of the Trustees, shall be called by the Secretary Treasurer.
	13.3 No business other than that for which the meeting was called shall be conducted at the meeting.

	14. Closed Meetings
	14.1 All matters coming before the Board shall be considered in public unless the public interest requires otherwise. In these circumstances, persons other than Trustees may be excluded from a meeting or from part of a meeting. Accordingly, the follow...
	14.1.1 Personnel matters including contract and collective agreement  negotiations; matters pertaining to individual employees including medical matters, appointment, promotion, demotion, transfer, conduct, competence, discipline, suspension, terminat...
	14.1.2 Legal matters: accident claims and other matters where Board liabilities may arise; legal opinions and advice respecting the liability or interest of the Board or respecting any matter to be considered in closed session; information or action r...
	14.1.3 Matters pertaining to individual students including medical matters and the conduct, discipline, suspension or expulsion of students.
	14.1.4 Acquisition and disposition of real property prior to finalization including: future site planning and designation; negotiations regarding purchase, lease sale or exchange of real property; purchase of real property; consideration of appraisal ...
	14.1.5 Matters pertaining to the safety, security or protection of Board property.
	14.1.6 Other matters where the Board decides that the public interest so requires.

	14.2 The Secretary Treasurer, or other employee designated in accordance with the School Act, must be present at the time that a decision of the Board is rendered and must record any decision.
	14.3 No Trustee shall disclose to the public the proceedings of a closed meeting unless a resolution has been passed at the closed meeting to allow such disclosure, except such as might be necessary to enforce the conflict of interest provisions of th...
	14.4 The Secretary Treasurer shall prepare a record containing a general statement as to the nature of the matters discussed and the general nature of the decisions reached at a meeting from which persons other than Trustees or officers of the Board o...

	15. Bylaws
	15.1 The following matters shall be dealt with only by bylaw:
	15.1.1 adoption of the budget;
	15.1.2 a capital bylaw;
	15.1.3 the acquisition or disposal of property;
	15.1.4 rules and procedures relative to the organization of meetings of the Board;
	15.1.5 amendments to bylaws; and,
	15.1.6 where specifically required by the School Act.

	15.2 Every bylaw shall be dealt with in the following stages:
	15.2.1 First reading: no debate or amendment;
	15.2.2 Second reading: discussion of the principle of the bylaw;
	15.2.3 Third reading: consideration of amendments made and final decision.

	15.3 When a bylaw has been amended it shall be reprinted as amended and shall not proceed until the amended version has been distributed.
	15.4  Subject to 14.3, at each of the three readings of a bylaw, the bylaw must be read in full, however, a reading of the bylaw may, if a written or printed copy of a bylaw is in the possession of each Trustee and is available to each member of the p...
	15.5 The Board shall not give a bylaw more than two readings at any one meeting unless the members of the Board who are present at the meeting unanimously agree to give the bylaw all three readings at the meeting.
	15.6 The Secretary Treasurer shall certify on a copy of each bylaw, the readings and the times thereof and the text of any amendment passed in committee.
	15.7  A bylaw may be withdrawn at any stage with consent of the Board.

	16. Electronic Participation by Trustees
	16.1 In accordance with the School Act, Trustees may participate in or attend any meeting of the Board by telephone or other means of communication, provided that all Trustees and other persons participating in or attending the meeting are able to com...
	16.2 If a Trustee participates in or attends a meeting of the Board by telephone or other means.

	17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	17.1 All points of procedure not provided for in this Bylaw shall be decided in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised.
	17.2 If any part of this Bylaw is held to be invalid by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Bylaw.

	18. REPEAL
	18.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) xxx Bylaw xxx dated December 2, 1996 and any previous xx Bylaws, including and amendments thereto, are hereby repealed.


	9b - Use of School District Property
	9b 1 - SD58 Use of School District Property Bylaw 6-23 Draft 2
	1. CITATION
	1.1 This bylaw may be cited as School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Access to School District Property 6-23.

	2. DEFINITIONS
	3. Access to Property
	1.1
	3.1  1. No person shall drive, operate or ride any motorizeda vehicle as defined by the Motor Vehicle Act, and amendments thereto (hereinafter called "vehicle") on or over any land owned or administered by the Board (hereinafter called "said land") of...
	3.1.1 Deliveries – Persons proceeding to or from a public schoolsaid land on a roadway provided for that purpose in the course of delivering or receiving chattels in connection with the operation of the of the said land or improvements thereon.said sc...
	3.1.2 Board Employees – Persons proceeding to or from a public schoolsaid land on a roadway provided for that purpose in connection with their duties therein, or on other bona fide business pertaining to the operation of the said land or improvements ...
	3.1.3 Students – Persons proceeding to or from a public school on a roadway provided for that purpose, and who are students registered within the school districtat that school; or
	3.1.4 1.4 Board Consent – Rightsholders, pParents, guardians, employees of the Boardpartners or such other persons proceeding to or from a public school on a roadway provided for that purpose, who have first received permission from the Board, either ...


	4. 2. Restrictions While on Board Property
	4.1 Speed Limit – No person shall operate any motorized vehicle on or over any land owned or administered by the Board at a rate of speed greater than eight (8) fifteen (15) kilometres per hour.;
	4.2 2.2 Parking – No person shall park, or otherwise leave unattended, a motor vehicle upon land owned or administered by the Board in any area other than those set aside for parking by the Board, unless written permission has been received.

	5. 3. Trespass
	5.1 3.1 No person shall enter upon any properties owned or administered by the Board,, other than bona fide students registered at a school, parents or guardians of such students and employees of the Board, shall enter upon land owned or or such other...
	5.2 3.2 No person, having been requested by a school principal or other person in authority, shall refuse to leave any land owned or administered by the Board.
	5.3 3.4 No person shall cause, suffer or permit any domestic or range animal to enter upon land owned or administered by the Board without permission.,. notwithstanding in open range areas the provincial statutes governing range Animal Control shall a...

	6. 4. Responsibility of Registered Owner
	6.1 The owner of a motor vehicle shall be held responsible for any violation of this Bylaw by a person entrusted by the owner with the possession of the said motor vehicle. The burden of proving that the person so in possession of the motor vehicle wa...

	7. 5. Penalty
	7.1 Any person contravening any breach of or committing any offence against this Bylaw or any of the provisions of this Bylaw or who fails, refuses, omits or neglects to fulfil, observe, carry out or perform any duty, obligation, matter or thing whats...

	8. 6. Authority to Make Regulations
	9. REPEAL
	9.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Bylaw Limitations on the Use of School District Property 901.1 dated May 18, 2013 and any previous Limitations on the Use of School District Property Bylaws, including and amendments thereto, are hereby ...


	9c - Freedom Of Information
	9c 1 - SD58 Freedom of Information Bylaw  4-23 Draft 4
	1. CITATION
	1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Bylaw 4-23.

	2. DEFINITIONS
	2.1 The terms used in this Bylaw have the meanings assigned by the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act except as when the context indicates otherwise.

	3. DESIGNATION OF HEAD
	3.1 The Board of Education designates the Secretary Treasurer as the head of the School District for the purposes of the Act and authorizes the Secretary Treasurer to be responsible for the administration of the Act.

	4. AUTHORIZATION TO ACT
	4.1 The Secretary Treasurer is authorized to issue any procedures required to support the district’s administration of the Act.

	5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	5.1 If any part of this Bylaw is held to be invalid by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Bylaw.

	6. REPEAL
	6.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Fees Bylaw 3-98 dated April 8, 1998 is hereby repealed.


	9d - Indemnification
	9d 1 - SD58 Indemnification Bylaw 3-23 Draft 5
	1. CITATION
	1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as ‘School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Indemnification Bylaw 3-23.

	2. DEFINITIONS
	2.1 The terms used in this Bylaw have the meanings assigned by the School Act except as when the context indicates otherwise.
	2.2 Within this this Bylaw:
	2.2.1 "trustee" means an electeda member of the Board;
	2.2.2 "officer" means a Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, Secretary-Treasurer, or Assistant Secretary Treasurer of the Board;
	2.2.3 "employee" means Director, district and school based administrators and all excluded staff, teachers and non-teaching personnel other than officers;
	2.2.4 reference to a trustee, officer or employee includes a former trustee, officer or employee;
	2.2.5 “court” means a court of law and includes a tribunal, an arbitrator and any other person who is acting in a judicial or quasi-judicial capacity.


	3. INDEMNIFICATION
	3.1 Subject to the exclusions below, the Board will, in accordance with the provisions of this Bylaw, indemnify a trustee, officer or employee:
	3.1.1 against a claim for damages against arising out of the performance of their duties, or
	3.1.2 if an inquiry under the Public Inquiry Act or other proceeding that involves the administration and conduct of the business of the School District.

	3.2 The Board may pay legal costs incurred in proceedings arising out of the claim, inquiry or other proceeding which involves the administration and conduct of the business of the School Districtschool district, and also pay legal costs incurred in s...
	3.3 The Board shall not seek indemnity from a trustee, officer or employee in respect of any action of the trustee, officer or employee that results in a claim for damages against the Board, except :
	3.3.1 where the claim for damages arises out of the gross negligence of the trustee, officer or employee; or
	3.3.2 where the officer or employee willfully acted contrary to the terms of their employment or, an order of a superior.


	4. CONTRACTS
	4.1 This Bylaw shall be read into all officer and employee employment contracts that are in force, or may be in force in the future, including collective agreements.

	5. Exclusions:
	5.1 The Board shall not indemnify a trustee, officer or employee against:
	5.1.1 any matters for which insurance coverage is available to cover the liability of the trustee, officer or employee;
	5.1.2 a fine or penalty imposed as a result of their criminal conviction, conditional discharge or absolute discharge;
	5.1.3 an action or proceeding by the Board against the trustee, officer or employee; or an action or proceeding by the trustee, officer or employee against the Board; or where the interests of the Board are, or may become, adverse to the interests of ...
	5.1.4 criminal prosecution that arises out of the performance of their duties, unless the Board agrees to do so by an affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds of all its members
	5.1.5 proceedings under the Teachers Act, unless the Board agrees to do so by an affirmative majority vote
	5.1.6 allegations of harassment, unless the Board agrees to the contrary, by an affirmative vote of a majority of its members
	5.1.7 a claim brought by a third party for liability arising out of the operation of a vehicle owned by or leased to the School District
	5.1.8 actions or claims regarding bodily injury caused intentionally, except when done to protect persons or property
	5.1.9 a restitution ordered pursuant to the School Act
	5.1.10 personal injury actions or claims arising out of the performance or alleged performance of a criminal or illegal act, unless they were not aware of, or party to, the performance of any such act
	5.1.11 legal cost or liability, where a Court determines that they knowingly contravened the School Act or other legislation; or knowingly permitted and/or authorized an expenditure which is not authorized by an enactment
	5.1.12 legal cost or liability where, in the opinion of the Board, they did not have reasonable grounds to believe that their conduct was lawful


	6. LEGAL COUNSEL:
	6.1 For those matters provided for in Section 3 of this Bylawbylaw, and not excluded by Section 5, the trustee, officer or employee may either:
	6.1.1 retain such legal counsel appointed by the Board, andas the Board shall provide instructions and pay the appointedmay appoint and such legal counsel directly, orshall be paid for and directed by the Board;
	6.1.2 retain legal counsel of their choice, andas the trustee, officer or employee may choose, in which case the Board shall have the right to:
	6.1.2.1 approve, in advance, any agreement for legal fees and disbursements;
	6.1.2.2 pay all or part of the legal fees and disbursements, and to set a maximum amount for legal fees and disbursements;
	1.1.1.1 direct the defense, and to settle or compromise the claim, or action, or proceeding. The;
	6.1.2.3 tax the account of the legal counsel and the trustee, officer or employee agrees to include such a term in the agreement with their legalhis/her counsel; and
	6.1.2.4 determine whether all,or not the trustee, officer or employee will be reimbursed by the Board for legal fees or any part,portion of the legal costsfees that have been paid by the trustee, officer or employee prior to the approval of the Board ...



	7. AMOUNTS PAYABLE:
	7.1 Any amount that may be payable by the Board shall be reduced by any court costs awarded to the trustee, officer or employee.

	8. ADVANCING LEGAL COSTS
	8.1 The Board may advanceshall give consideration to advancing legal costs to the trustee, officer or employee prior to the final resolution of a claim, or action or proceedingin order to prevent undue hardship.
	8.2 When the Board advances legalsuch costs to a trustee, officer, or employee, they the trustee, officer or employee shall provide a written authorization for the Board to deduct anany amount equivalent to the costs advanced fromform future funds pay...

	9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	9.1 If any part of this Bylaw is held to be invalid by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Bylaw.

	10. REPEAL
	10.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Indemnification Bylaw 2-96 dated December 2, 1996 and any previous Indemnification Bylaws, including and amendments thereto, are hereby repealed.


	9a 1 - SD58 Procedural  Bylaw Draft November 2 2023.pdf
	1. CITATION
	1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) Procedural Bylaw xx.
	1.2 The rules contained in this Bylaw may be amended by bylaw only, at a meeting of which notice of intention to propose the amendment has been given at the previous meeting and in the notice of the meeting.
	1.3 A copy of the Board's procedural Bylaw shall be available for inspection at all
	reasonable times by any person.

	2. DEFINITIONS
	2.1 The terms used in this Bylaw have the meanings assigned by the School Act except as when the context indicates otherwise.

	3. Oath of Office, Inaugural Meeting and Election of Board Officers
	3.1 A person elected or appointed as a Trustee must take a prescribed oath of office, by oath or solemn affirmation, within the timelines outlined in the School Act, before assuming their role as a Trustee on the Board.
	3.2 After the general local election of Trustees, the Secretary Treasurer shall convene a first meeting of the Board as soon as possible and, in any event, within 30 days from the date that the new Board begins its term of office.
	3.3 The Secretary Treasurer will call the meeting to order and will preside until a Chair has been elected.
	3.4 The Secretary Treasurer shall announce the results of Trustee elections and confirm that all Trustees have taken the oath of office, or shall administer, or cause to be administered, the oath of office to Trustees who have not taken it.
	3.5 The Secretary Treasurer shall call for nominations three times for the position of Board Chair.
	3.5.1 Trustees may not nominate themselves.
	3.5.2 Nominations do not require a seconder.
	3.5.3 After each nomination, the Secretary Treasurer will request that each candidate accept or decline their nomination.
	3.5.4 Once nominations are closed, Trustees, who have accepted a nomination, may address their colleagues for two minutes.
	3.5.5 Trustees who are not elected for one office may accept a nomination for another office.

	3.6 The Secretary Treasurer will then conduct a vote, if necessary, by secret ballot. The Secretary Treasurer may designate one or more staff members as scrutineers to count the ballots. A person receiving a majority of the total votes cast will be el...
	3.6.1 If no person receives a clear majority, further ballots will be taken.
	3.6.2 If more than two candidates are on a ballot and no majority is reached, the person with the least number of votes will be dropped from the nominees and a further ballot conducted.
	3.6.3 If any vote involving only two Trustees ends in a tie vote, the election shall be decided by drawing of lots.
	3.6.4 All ballots will be destroyed.
	3.6.5 The Secretary Treasurer will declare the duly elected Chair of the Board and will vacate the Chair.

	3.7 The Chair so elected shall assume the Chair for the remainder of the meeting.
	3.8 Upon assuming the Chair, the Chair will call for nominations for Vice Chair of the Board, and then for the BCSTA Provincial Council and BCPSEA Representatives (and their alternates) for the ensuing year and will conduct each election in the same m...
	3.8.1 If possible, the Chair shall be from one electoral area and the Vice-Chair shall be from another electoral area.

	3.9 The Chair and Vice Chair serve in their roles at the pleasure of the Board or until the annual Special Meeting in the following November.
	3.9.1 A majority of the Board may elect a new Chair or Vice-Chair at any time.

	3.10 Following the elections, the order of business shall include:
	3.10.1 passage of banking resolutions and appointment of signing officers; and,
	3.10.2 appointment of time and place for meetings.


	4. Annual Special Meeting of the Board and Election of Board Officers
	4.1 In the years when no inaugural meeting is required, an annual Special Meeting of the Board will be held, in public, no later than the third Wednesday in November to appoint representatives to the BCSTA Provincial Council and BCPSEA Representatives...

	5. Meetings of the Board – Agendas, quorum and minutes
	5.1 Prior to each meeting, the Secretary Treasurer is responsible to prepare an agenda in consultation with the Chair and Superintendent outlining all business to be brought before the Board.
	5.2 Proposed agenda items may be requested to be on the agenda in one of the following ways:
	5.2.1 Individual Trustees wishing to have business brought before the Board will forward the business item to the Chair and Secretary Treasurer to facilitate appropriate action.
	5.2.2 As a request from a Committee of the Board.
	5.2.3 At the commencement of a meeting, in the event a Trustee believes that an item requires immediate attention, the Chair will allow the item to be added to the agenda provided that no objection is raised by any Trustee in attendance. If an objecti...

	5.3 The Board agenda and supporting documentation will be provided to each Trustee in an electronic format, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.
	5.3.1 Every effort will be made to deliver the agenda and all supporting material to Trustees at least three working days prior to the time of Regular and Closed Meetings.
	5.3.2 Non receipt by a Trustee shall not void the proceedings.
	5.3.3 Written notice of any meeting will be waived provided that reasonable steps have been taken to notify all Trustees of the meeting and that the majority of the sitting Trustees agree to the waiving of the written notice.
	5.3.4 The agenda and supporting material for each Regular Meeting will be emailed to Rights-Holders and stakeholders 48 hours in advance of the meeting.
	5.3.5 The agenda and supporting material for each Regular Meeting will be available for the public and interested media through the District website subsequent to delivery of the agenda to Trustees.
	5.3.6 Additional supporting information or related correspondence may be provided to the Board up to the start of the meeting if the information and correspondence is related to items on the published agenda.

	5.4 A quorum of the Board is a majority of the Trustees holding office at the time of the meeting.
	5.4.1 If, prior to any meeting, the Chair and/or the Secretary Treasurer have received information suggesting there will not be a quorum, the meeting may be rescheduled, and attempts will be made to contact all Trustees.
	5.4.2 At the appointed time for commencement of a meeting, the presiding officer shall ascertain that a quorum is present before proceeding to the business of the meeting. If a quorum has not been made within one-half hour after the appointed time, th...
	5.4.3 After a meeting has commenced, if notice is drawn to a lack of quorum, the presiding officer shall ascertain whether there is a lack of quorum and, if so found, adjourn the meeting to the next regular meeting date or to another meeting called in...

	5.5 In the event both the Chair and Vice Chair are absent, and a quorum is present, the Secretary Treasurer will call the Trustees to order and the Trustees will choose a Trustee to chair the meeting until the arrival of the Chair or Vice Chair.
	5.6 All meetings will begin with meaningful recognition of the ancestral, traditional and unceded territories of the Nłeʔkepmx and Syilx people and acknowledgement of the Metis communities.
	5.7 At all meetings, the Secretary Treasurer must be present at the time that a decision of the Board is rendered and must record any decision. If the Secretary Treasurer is unable to attend the meeting, or if the meeting concerns the work performance...
	5.8 Any Trustee with a conflict of interest in a Meeting will:
	5.8.1 state that they have a conflict of interest in the matter;
	5.8.2 state the general nature of the conflict of interest;
	5.8.3 not take part in any discussion of the matter, if the meeting is not closed to the public, or leave any meeting closed to the public;
	5.8.4 not attempt in any way to influence the voting on any question in respect of the matter, before, during or after the meeting; and
	5.8.5 abstain from voting on any question in respect of the matter or the part of the meeting during which the matter is under consideration.

	5.9 The Chair or other Trustee presiding at a meeting may expel from the meeting a person, other than a Trustee, that the Chair or other Trustee presiding at the meeting considers guilty of improper conduct. A majority of the Trustees present at a mee...
	5.10 Minutes of the proceedings of all meetings shall be legibly recorded in a minute book, ratified at the next meeting of the Board, certified as correct by the Secretary Treasurer or other employee designated and the Chair or other Trustee presidin...
	5.10.1 Minutes will not record the names of movers and seconders.
	5.10.2 Minutes will not record who voted for or against motions. Trustees may ask to have their vote recorded.
	5.10.3 If a Trustee declares a conflict of interest, such conflict will be recorded in the minutes.
	5.10.4 Except for minutes of a meeting or portion of a meeting from which persons other than Trustees or Board officers, or both, were excluded, the minutes will  be published on the District website once adopted.


	6. MEETING RULES OF ORDER
	6.1 Meetings of the Board will be conducted in accordance with this Bylaw and, where the Bylaw is silent, using Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised, except where provisions of the School Act may conflict, in which case the latter will prevail.
	6.2 The Board may adopt a procedural rule for one or more meetings by resolution approved by two-thirds of the Trustees present at the meeting. A rule, other than the requirement for notice of meetings, may be suspended by unanimous consent of the Tru...
	6.3 The presiding officer's ruling on a point of order shall be based on rules of order as stated in paragraph 6.1. The ruling shall be subject to an appeal to the Board if requested by a Trustee immediately after the ruling and before resumption of b...
	6.4 An appeal of a ruling of the presiding officer shall be decided without debate by a majority vote of the Trustees present. A successful appeal does not necessarily set a precedent.

	7. Motions
	7.1 A motion, when introduced, brings business before the meeting for possible action. A motion should be worded in a concise, unambiguous and complete form and, if lengthy or complex, should be submitted in writing.
	7.2 Subject to the concurrence of the seconder, the mover of a motion may withdraw the motion at any time prior to the vote being taken. A motion which has been withdrawn may be re-introduced at the same meeting only by a different Trustee.
	7.3 The presiding officer may divide a motion containing more than one subject and it shall be voted on in the form in which it is divided.
	7.4 All motions shall be seconded.
	7.5 The Chair must vote as any other member.
	7.6 An amendment is a motion to modify the wording of a pending motion. An amendment must be germane, i.e., closely related to or having a bearing on the subject of the motion to be amended. A motion can be amended more than once, however, there can b...
	7.7 A motion to reconsider a decision can be made the day on which the original motion was voted upon, by a member who voted on the prevailing side. It may be seconded by any member. It is debatable if the motion proposed to be reconsidered is debatab...
	7.8 Motions to rescind or to amend something previously adopted will be considered only if notice has been given at the previous meeting or in the call for the present meeting and if no action has been taken which it is too late to undo. Such motions ...
	7.9 Motions to rescind or to amend something previously adopted for which notice has been given require a majority vote to pass. However, if the original motion required a two-thirds vote or a vote of the majority of the Board, the same vote is requir...
	7.10 A motion that has been defeated at a previous meeting can be moved again at a subsequent meeting only if notice is given in the call of the meeting.

	8. Debate
	8.1 Debate shall be strictly relevant to the question before the meeting. The presiding officer shall warn speakers who violate this rule or who persist in tedious or repetitious debate.
	8.2 Speakers shall be recognized by the chair and shall address all remarks to the chair.
	8.3 The Chair may vacate the chair to enter debate or propose or second a motion in which case the Vice-Chair, if present, or another member appointed by the Chair shall preside.
	8.4 Each Trustee has the right to speak twice on the same question on the same day but cannot make a second speech so long as any Trustee who has not spoken on the question desires to speak. No Trustee shall speak for more than five minutes at one time.
	8.5 A matter of privilege (dealing with the rights or interests of the Board as a whole or of a Trustee personally) may be raised at any time and shall be dealt with forthwith before resumption of business.
	8.6 No Trustee shall interrupt another Trustee who has the floor except to raise a point of order, a point of privilege or to disclose a conflict of interest.

	9. Voting
	9.1  It is expected that all Trustees present at a meeting will vote on each motion, unless a Trustee has a declared conflict of interest, in which case the Trustee must not vote and such an abstention shall be recorded.
	9.1.1 If a Trustee wishes to abstain for any other reason or to have a negative vote recorded he or she must so request before or immediately after the vote is taken.
	9.1.2 The Chair will vote at the same time as other Trustees.

	9.2 Voting shall be by show of hands and only the results recorded unless a member requests recording of names before the vote is taken. Where names are recorded both positive and negative votes shall be recorded.
	9.3 All questions shall be decided by a majority of the votes of the Trustees present and voting unless otherwise provided by the School Act.
	9.3.1 In the case of a tie vote, the motion is defeated.


	10. Regular Meetings OF THE BOARD
	10.1 Meetings of the Board shall be open to the public unless, in the opinion of the Board, the public interest requires that persons other than Trustees be excluded.
	10.2 A Regular Meeting will normally be held monthly during the school year.
	10.3 Annually, the Board will determine the schedule of meetings for the following school year and will publish the schedule at the beginning of each school year in non-general election years, and within sixty (60) days following the election date in ...
	10.3.1 The meetings will alternate between Merritt and Princeton.

	10.4 Significant consideration will be given will be given to one of Regular Meeting per year taking place, on a rotating schedule, at a “Rights-Holder” location.
	10.5 A Regular Meeting shall stand adjourned at three hours after its commencement unless a consensus has been reached to extend the hour of adjournment.
	10.6 The order of business at Regular Meetings will be:
	10.6.1 Call to Order and meaningful acknowledgement of the ancestral, traditional and unceded territories of the Nłeʔkepmx and Syilx people and acknowledgement of the Metis communities.
	10.6.2 Approval of Agenda
	10.6.3 Adoption of Minutes of Prior Meetings
	10.6.4 Report from Closed Meeting
	10.6.5 Recognition, Presentations, and Delegations
	10.6.6 New Business
	10.6.7 Indigenous Education Report
	10.6.8 Superintendent Report
	10.6.9 Committee Reports
	10.6.10 Trustee Reports
	10.6.11 Public Question Period
	10.6.12 Adjournment

	10.7 A change to the order of business may be proposed by any Trustee and shall require unanimous consent.

	11. Recognition, Presentations and Delegations AT Regular Meetings
	11.1 The Board welcomes and encourages presentations and delegations from students, parents, Rights-holders, staff, partners, and others at meetings.
	11.1.1 The Superintendent, or designate, will be responsible to schedule in-district presentations and recognition activities.
	11.1.2 Attempts should be made to keep such presentations to approximately 10 minutes.

	11.2 A person or group wishing to address the Board as a delegation on an item not otherwise on the agenda will provide a written request outlining the item(s) they wish to present and naming a spokesperson.
	11.2.1 Consideration of the request is subject to article 5 of this Bylaw for placement on the agenda of a Regular or Closed Meeting.
	11.2.2 A request to present at a Regular Meeting will require a brief written submission, including the purpose (information, request for action, etc.) of the presentation seven days in advance of the scheduled Regular Meeting for distribution to Trus...

	11.3 The Board will hear the delegation’s presentation and the Trustees may ask questions for clarification. The Board will ordinarily take the presentation under advisement and will take action after due deliberation, usually at a subsequent meeting.
	11.3.1 The Chair will rule on the propriety of all presentations and comments and may terminate any presentation or comment or refer it to a Closed Meeting of the Board if that is deemed to be appropriate by the Chair.
	11.3.2 A maximum of ten minutes will be allowed for each Delegation to make a presentation.

	11.4 If circumstances warrant, the Board may receive such individuals or Delegations in a Closed Meeting.
	12.1.1 Questions regarding personnel or specific students must be raised with the Superintendent privately.
	12.1.2 Matters currently under negotiation or litigation, or related to personnel or student circumstances, are not permitted and will not be addressed in the public question period.
	12.2.1 Speakers must identify themselves and their connection to the District before speaking.
	12.2.2 All questions will be limited to five minutes and directed to the Chair, who may refer the question to the Superintendent or Secretary Treasurer.
	12.2.3 The Chair may restrict the length of time any one individual may speak.
	12.2.4 The response to a question will be made during the meeting, when possible, or deferred until a later date when information becomes available.
	12.2.5 Individuals addressing the Board assume personal responsibility for all statements made to the Board.
	12.2.6 The Chair will use judgment to stop any inappropriate questions that would be better discussed in a different forum.
	12.2.7 The Chair may use discretion to terminate any speaker’s privilege or exclude a speaker from the meeting if, after due warning, the speaker persists with conduct or remarks which the Chair considers inappropriate.


	13. Special Meetings
	13.1 Special Meetings are any meetings held between the regularly scheduled meetings.
	13.2 A special meeting open to the public, or a Special Closed Meeting may be called by the s or, upon written request by a majority of the Trustees, shall be called by the Secretary Treasurer.
	13.3 No business other than that for which the meeting was called shall be conducted at the meeting.

	14. Closed Meetings
	14.1 All matters coming before the Board shall be considered in public unless the public interest requires otherwise. In these circumstances, persons other than Trustees may be excluded from a meeting or from part of a meeting. Accordingly, the follow...
	14.1.1 Personnel matters including contract and collective agreement  negotiations; matters pertaining to individual employees including medical matters, appointment, promotion, demotion, transfer, conduct, competence, discipline, suspension, terminat...
	14.1.2 Legal matters: accident claims and other matters where Board liabilities may arise; legal opinions and advice respecting the liability or interest of the Board or respecting any matter to be considered in closed session; information or action r...
	14.1.3 Matters pertaining to individual students including medical matters and the conduct, discipline, suspension or expulsion of students.
	14.1.4 Acquisition and disposition of real property prior to finalization including: future site planning and designation; negotiations regarding purchase, lease sale or exchange of real property; purchase of real property; consideration of appraisal ...
	14.1.5 Matters pertaining to the safety, security or protection of Board property.
	14.1.6 Other matters where the Board decides that the public interest so requires.

	14.2 The Secretary Treasurer, or other employee designated in accordance with the School Act, must be present at the time that a decision of the Board is rendered and must record any decision.
	14.3 No Trustee shall disclose to the public the proceedings of a closed meeting unless a resolution has been passed at the closed meeting to allow such disclosure, except such as might be necessary to enforce the conflict of interest provisions of th...
	14.4 The Secretary Treasurer shall prepare a record containing a general statement as to the nature of the matters discussed and the general nature of the decisions reached at a meeting from which persons other than Trustees or officers of the Board o...

	15. Bylaws
	15.1 The following matters shall be dealt with only by bylaw:
	15.1.1 adoption of the budget;
	15.1.2 a capital bylaw;
	15.1.3 the acquisition or disposal of property;
	15.1.4 rules and procedures relative to the organization of meetings of the Board;
	15.1.5 amendments to bylaws; and,
	15.1.6 where specifically required by the School Act.

	15.2 Every bylaw shall be dealt with in the following stages:
	15.2.1 First reading: no debate or amendment;
	15.2.2 Second reading: discussion of the principle of the bylaw;
	15.2.3 Third reading: consideration of amendments made and final decision.

	15.3 When a bylaw has been amended it shall be reprinted as amended and shall not proceed until the amended version has been distributed.
	15.4  Subject to 14.3, at each of the three readings of a bylaw, the bylaw must be read in full, however, a reading of the bylaw may, if a written or printed copy of a bylaw is in the possession of each Trustee and is available to each member of the p...
	15.5 The Board shall not give a bylaw more than two readings at any one meeting unless the members of the Board who are present at the meeting unanimously agree to give the bylaw all three readings at the meeting.
	15.6 The Secretary Treasurer shall certify on a copy of each bylaw, the readings and the times thereof and the text of any amendment passed in committee.
	15.7  A bylaw may be withdrawn at any stage with consent of the Board.

	16. Electronic Participation by Trustees
	16.1 In accordance with the School Act, Trustees may participate in or attend any meeting of the Board by telephone or other means of communication, provided that all Trustees and other persons participating in or attending the meeting are able to com...
	16.2 If a Trustee participates in or attends a meeting of the Board by telephone or other means.

	17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	17.1 All points of procedure not provided for in this Bylaw shall be decided in accordance with Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised.
	17.2 If any part of this Bylaw is held to be invalid by the decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Bylaw.

	18. REPEAL
	18.1 School District No. 58 (Nicola-Similkameen) xxx Bylaw xxx dated December 2, 1996 and any previous xx Bylaws, including and amendments thereto, are hereby repealed.


	8a1 Quarterly Update Data.pdf
	Sept 2023


